
 

Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

 
 

WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Members Thursday, January 28, 2016 
Kitty Jung, Chair 1:00 p.m. 
Julia Ratti, Vice Chair  
Oscar Delgado  
Dr. George Hess Washoe County Administration Complex 
David Silverman Health District South Conference Room 
Dr. John Novak 1001 East Ninth Street 
Michael D. Brown Reno, NV 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Items for Possible Action.  All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for 
possible action as if the words “for possible action” were written next to each item (NRS 
241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no action will be taken. 

1:00 p.m. 
1. *Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 
2. *Pledge of Allegiance 
3. *Public Comment 

Any person is invited to speak on any item on or off the agenda during this period. 
Action may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the 
matter is specifically listed on an agenda as an action item.   

4. Approval of Agenda 
January 28, 2016 

5. Approval of Draft Minutes 
December 17, 2015 

6. Recognitions 
A. Transfer 

1. Scott Baldwin – From EHS Environmental Health Specialist to AQM Air Quality 
Specialist II – 1/11/16 

B. New Hires 
1. Sonya Smith – Public Health Nurse I, hired 12/14/15 - CCHS 
2. Maximilian Wegener – Public Health Investigator II, hired 12/28/15 - EPHP 
3. Ellen Messinger-Patton – Environmental Health Trainee I, hired 1/11/16 - EHS 
4. Briana Johnson – Environmental Health Trainee I, hired 1/11/16 – EHS 

C. Promotion 
1. Nick Florey – Environmental Health Specialist to Senior Environmental Health 

Specialist effective January 25, 2016 - EHS 



January 28, 2016 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Agenda   Page 2 of 3 

7. Consent Items
Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one motion.  Any exceptions to
the Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval.
A. Accept cash donation in the amount of $3,000 from Arctica Ice Sales to purchase Long

Acting Reversible Contraceptives (LARCs) to help decrease high unintended pregnancy 
rates; approve amendments totaling an increase of $3,000 in both revenue and expense to 
the FY16 Arctica Ice Donation budget, IO-20424. 
Staff Representative: Steve Kutz 

B. Appoint Vonnie L. Fundin to the Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Hearing Board 
(SWS Board) for a three-year term beginning January 28, 2016 and ending on January 
27, 2019 
Staff Representative: Jim English 

8. *Update on Quality Improvement Processes for Health District Services 
Staff Representative: Sara Dinga 

9. *Introduction of New REMSA President and Comments from REMSA Board Chair 
Presented by Jim Begbie 

10. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority
Presented by Dean Dow
A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for November and

December, 2015 

*B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities during November and December, 2015

11. *Regional Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board January Meeting Summary 
Staff Representative: Christina Conti 

12. Discussion and possible approval of the draft REMSA response zones map within the
Washoe County REMSA ambulance franchise service area
Staff Representative: Christina Conti

13. Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for December Fiscal
Year 2016
Staff Representative: Anna Heenan

14. Discussion and possible approval of the Washoe County Community Health
Improvement Plan, 2016-2018
Staff Representative: Sara Dinga

15. *Staff Reports and Program Updates 
A. Air Quality Management, Charlene Albee, Director 

Program Update, Divisional Update, Program Reports 
B. Community and Clinical Health Services, Steve Kutz, Director 

Divisional Update, Program Reports 

C. Environmental Health Services, Bob Sack, Director 
EHS Division Update, Program Updates - Food, Land Development, Vector-Borne 
Disease, Waste Management and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan Review 

D. Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, Dr. Randall Todd, Director 
Program Updates for Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, and 
Emergency Medical Services 



January 28, 2016 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Agenda   Page 3 of 3 

E. Office of the District Health Officer, Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
District Health Officer Report – Community Health Improvement Plan, Truckee 
Meadows Healthy Communities, Strategic Planning, Quality Improvement, Budget, 
Security, Other Events and Activities and Health District Media Contacts 

16. *Board Comment 
Limited to announcements or issues for future agendas. 

17. Emergency Items
18. *Public Comment 

Any person is invited to speak on any item on or off the agenda during this period. Action 
may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the matter is 
specifically listed on an agenda as an action item.   

19. Adjournment
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Possible Changes to Agenda Order and Timing.  Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, 
withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may 
be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later. 
Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless 
withdrawn from the Consent agenda.  

Special Accommodations. The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the 
public who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in 
writing at the Washoe County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior 
to the meeting. 

Public Comment.  During the “Public Comment” items, anyone may speak pertaining to any matter either on or off the agenda, 
to include items to be heard on consent.  For the remainder of the agenda, public comment will only be heard during items that 
are not marked with an asterisk (*).  Any public comment for hearing items will be heard before action is taken on the item and 
must be about the specific item being considered by the Board.  In order to speak during any public comment, each speaker must 
fill out a “Request to Speak” form and/or submit comments for the record to the Recording Secretary.  Public comment and 
presentations for individual agenda items are limited as follows: fifteen minutes each for staff and appellant presentations, five 
minutes for a speaker representing a group, and three minutes for individual speakers unless extended by questions from the 
Board or by action of the Chair. 

Response to Public Comment. The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health. 
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”  

Posting of Agenda; Location of Website. 

Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 

Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Downtown Reno Library, 301 S. Center St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV 
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
State of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov 

How to Get Copies of Agenda and Support Materials. Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County 
Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, Nevada.  Ms. Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary to the District Board 
of Health is the person designated by the Washoe County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting 
materials.  Ms. Spinola is located at the Washoe County Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by 
email at dspinola@washoecounty.us.  Supporting materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website 
www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the requirements of NRS 241.020. 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
https://notice.nv.gov/


Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH 
MEETING MINUTES 

Members Thursday, December 17, 2015 
Kitty Jung, Chair 1:00 p.m. 
Julia Ratti, Vice Chair 
Neoma Jardon 
Dr. George Hess Washoe County Administration Complex 
David Silverman Health District South Conference Room 
Dr. John Novak 1001 East Ninth Street 
Michael D. Brown Reno, NV 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

1. *Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 

Chair Jung called the meeting to order at 1:03 p.m. 

The following members and staff were present: 

Members present: Kitty Jung, Chair 
Julia Ratti, Vice Chair (attended 1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. via telephone) 
Dr. George Hess 
Dr. John Novak 
David Silverman 
Mike Brown  

Members absent: Neoma Jardon 

Ms. Spinola verified a quorum was present.  
Staff present: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer, ODHO 

Herb Kaplan, Deputy District Attorney 
Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer, AHS 
Charlene Albee, Division Director, AQM 
Steve Kutz, Division Director, CCHS 
Randall Todd, Division Director, EPHP 
Bob Sack, Division Director, EHS 
Erin Dixon, Fiscal Compliance Officer, AHS 
Christina Conti, EMS Program Manager, EPHP 
Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary/Recording Secretary, ODHO 

2. *Pledge of Allegiance 

Audience member Jess Traver led the pledge to the flag. 
3. *Public Comment 

Cheryl Huett wished everyone a Merry Christmas.  

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



December 17, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 12 

4. Approval of Agenda

December 17, 2015

Dr. Novak moved to approve the agenda for the December 17, 2015, District Board of
Health regular meeting.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which was approved six in favor 
and none against. 
5. Approval of Draft Minutes

November 19, 2015

Dr. Novak moved to accept the minutes of the November 19, 2015 District Board of
Health regular meeting as written.  Mr. Silverman seconded the motion which was 
approved six in favor and none against. 
6. Recognitions

A. Years of Service

1. Christina Conti-Rodriguez, 10 years, 12/5/05 through 12/5/15 – EPHP

Mr. Dick congratulated Ms. Conti-Rodriguez and presented her with a
commemorative certificate. 

2. Julie Hunter, 10 years, 12/27/05 through 12/17/15 – AQM

Mr. Dick congratulated Ms. Hunter and presented her with a commemorative
certificate. 

B. Departures 

1. Mark Wickman, 10 ½ years, June 13, 2005 to December 4, 2015 – EHS

Mr. Dick thanked Mr. Wickman, congratulated him on his new position in
Alternative Sentencing, and presented him with a commemorative certificate. 

C. Congratulations 

1. Dr. John Novak elected to the National Association of Local Boards of Health, Board
of Directors effective January 1, 2016.

Mr. Dick congratulated Dr. Novak on his achievement.

7. Proclamation

1. National Radon Action Month
Accepted by Jamie Royce-Gomes and Susan Howe of the University of Nevada
Cooperative Extension, and Frankie Vigil of the American Lung Association.

Mr. Dick read the proclamation.

[Vice Chair Ratti’s call disconnected at 1:11 p.m.]

Ms. Royce-Gomes thanked the Board for the proclamation, reviewed the dangers of
radon, and offered testing kits and services.  

Ms. Vigil noted radon was the number one cause of cancer-caused deaths in women.  She 
stated they appreciated the partnership and the help in spreading the message. 

Chief Brown moved to adopt the proclamation.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion 
which was approved five in favor and none against.   



 
December 17, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 12 

[Vice Chair Ratti’s call was reconnected at 1:20 p.m.] 

Chair Jung congratulated Dr. Novak and pointed out it was a great opportunity for 
Washoe County to be represented.  It provided opportunities for grants, education, and 
training.  She encouraged him to attend the next annual conference.   

8. Consent Items 
Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one motion.  Any exceptions to 
the Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval. 
A. Budget Amendments/Interlocal Agreements 

1. Approval of Award from the Association of Food and Drug Officials (AFDO) for 
total funding of $2,500 for the period January 4, 2016 through September 16, 2016 in 
support of the Environmental Health Services Division (EHS) Food Program, Retail 
Program Standards, IO TBD; approve amendments totaling an increase of $2,273 to 
the Retail Program Standards Grant, IO TBD 
Staff Representative: Erin Dixon 

2. Retroactive approval of Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health, for the period November 1, 2015 through June 30, 
2015 in the total amount of $56,382 in support of the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC) Public Health Preparedness, FY 16 Carryover, IO TBA; Approve 
amendments totaling an increase of $53,140 in both revenue and expense to the FY 
16 CDC Public Health Preparedness – FY16 Carryover, IO TBA 
Staff Representative: Erin Dixon 

3. Approval amendments totaling an increase of $24,005 in both revenue and expense to 
the FY 16 ASPR Public Health Preparedness – Carryover Federal Grant Program, IO 
TBA 
Staff Representative: Erin Dixon 

B. Possible Approval of 2016 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Calendar 
Staff Representative: Kevin Dick 
Dr. Novak moved to accept the Consent Agenda as presented.  Chief Brown 

seconded the motion which was approved six in favor and none against.   
9. PUBLIC HEARING – Discussion and proposed adoption of revisions to the Health 

Department Fee Schedule, specific to Air Quality Management and Environmental Health 
Services, (Development Review, Construction Plan Review, Food Service Establishment 
Permits, Temporary Foods/Special Events Permits, Permitted Facilities, Variances, Waste 
Management, Miscellaneous, Vector Fees, Underground Storage Tanks), as may be 
determined by the District Board of Health, with collection beginning on or after February 1, 
2016 
Staff Representative: Erin Dixon 
Chair Jung opened the public hearing. 
Ms. Dixon presented the staff report.  She noted additions had been provided to the Board 

and made available to the public.  She explained she had compared some fees to those of other 
jurisdictions, and provided an overview of her findings.   

Ms. Dixon noted the Board had asked about posting of temporary food permits.  The 
requirement is in the regulations and staff will make it a priority to enforce it.   

Ms. Dixon explained that staff had arrived at alternatives to the proposed Temporary Food 
and Special Events permit fees as a result of comments received.  Those had been provided to the 



 
December 17, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 12 

Board and made available to the public.  There had been changes made to number of inspections, 
staffing and permit holders will now be required to pay for all reinspections.  A fee for large 
special events will need to be developed to cover events that require substantial staff time.   

Ms. Dixon noted fees associated with septic had also been revisited as a result of comments 
received.  The number of staff hours required to complete the work was returned to current levels 
and that reduced the proposed fees.  Staff will be forming a workgroup with the Builder’s 
Association of Northern Nevada (BANN) to discuss and seek consensus on appropriate 
regulation and oversight of septic systems.  Recommended changes to fees and/or regulations 
will be reported back to the Board.   

Mr. Dick stated that Brian Reeder of the Associated General Contractors has agreed to 
participate in the workgroup along with BANN.   

Ms. Dixon noted the Board had requested additional information about Dust Control permits, 
and Ms. Albee had compiled and submitted that information with the Board item.   

Ms. Dixon explained the original fee implementation date had been targeted to align with the 
rollout of Accela.  As Accela has been postponed, staff was proposing a start date of February 1, 
2016.  She pointed out a schedule of incremental implementation had been provided as part of 
the packet.  It proposed a 50% increase on February 1, 2016, and the full 100% increase on 
February 1, 2017.  Beginning July 1, 2017, the fees would begin to increase annually based on 
the Consumer Price Index (CPI), and a full revision would be completed five years after that.   

Dr. Hess suggested the second increase should be done at the start of the fiscal year, so that it 
would be easier to compare results on a year-over-year basis.  Ms. Dixon opined that the 
proposed schedule retained the opportunity to compare them in 12-month increments.  Dr. Hess 
reiterated his request and suggested February was not an opportune time to implement the new 
fee structure.   

Dr. Hess expressed concern about the per-acre dust control fee increasing exponentially 
based on the size of the project.  Ms. Albee explained the issuance of the permit was for 18 
months.  Over that course of time, the project may or may not be finalized, and multiple 
inspections may need to be conducted. 

Jess Traver of BANN noted they had been working with staff for approximately two years on 
the fees and had been successful in addressing issues.  He complimented staff for their outreach 
efforts.  Mr. Traver opined the septic fees were excessive, as they were based on review times 
that appeared to be more extensive than necessary.  He noted BANN was looking forward to the 
opportunity to review the code, opining it would provide the opportunity to explore efficiencies.  
Mr. Traver also opined the fee increases should be postponed until after the review had taken 
place.  He listed some of the other fees that the builders had expressed concern with and would 
like to discuss in the workshop forum.  He noted the recordkeeping process for septic tank 
locations would be more useful if they were digitized.  

Cheryl Huett of Goodies noted she had provided the Board with a list of the Temporary 
Annual Food Permit fees for Clark County.  She acknowledged the proposed changes to the 
Temporary Food Permit fees were great, but questioned the per-day-inspection fee based on the 
number of days.  She opined the structure should be revisited with regards to non-profits.  She 
suggested alternative fees based on the number of days the permit would be active.   

Frank Bouchard, representing two local construction operations, stated he was glad the fees 
had been reduced but opined they were still high.  He stated the permittee was required to do the 
majority of the work by providing a complete and accurate set of plans, which likely did not 
require extensive review.  He suggested the number of hours allotted for the physical inspection 



 
December 17, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 12 

of septic tanks was excessive.   
Brodie Lewis, of MB Lewis Construction Company, stated he was also concerned by the 

proposed increases, and reviewed the ones most pertinent to his business.  He expressed his 
appreciation for the reduction but opined it was not quite enough.  He opined the methodology 
utilized to determine the fees may not be appropriate, and that the proposed fees were higher 
than anywhere else in the Western region. 

Rex Flowers explained he was in the process of building a detached shop and was behind 
schedule due to challenges with the Health District.  Additionally, he has been informed he will 
be paying higher fees due to an excessive number of required inspections.  He noted an inspector 
had come to his home on a day when no one was there and had elected not to conduct the 
inspection.  He inferred that he had been less than pleased with some interactions with staff.   

Hayley Hamel of the Child Garden explained they had been required to put in a support 
kitchen due to the fact they heat lunches provided by the parents and serve pizza provided by a 
restaurant.  She expressed concern with the fee increase for the kitchen.  Ms. Hamel noted the 
inspector did not spend much time during their annual inspection as the facility was not actually 
making food.  She opined the increase would affect all of the preschools in the County.   

Tray Abney from The Chamber stated he could not speak highly enough of Mr. Dick and his 
team; they had been very proactive in reaching out and answering questions.  Mr. Abney 
acknowledged the fees had been developed after a full-scale review of current practices and 
procedures.  The Chamber agreed that a certain amount of increases were justified.  He 
expressed support for the workgroup, noting they had the same concerns.  They were 
appreciative of the phased-in approach.  Mr. Abney noted the work towards creating efficiencies 
should be ongoing.  He requested the Board bear in mind that other fees had also recently been 
increased.   

Lea Tauchen, Retail Association of Nevada, stated she appreciated the Board’s consideration 
of the burden that the fees could create for businesses.  She echoed the comments made by The 
Chamber and reiterated the urging of the consideration for a phased-in approach.  She noted most 
businesses have already created their budget for the following year, so it is a challenge for them 
to react to such a significant jump.   

Debra Roth, of the Lion and Lamb Christian School, stated she had not been notified about 
the increase, they had received the information from another preschool director.  She explained 
the challenges they and other businesses had faced with increasing regulations and fees.  She 
opined it was the inspector’s job to inspect the facilities and that it was unethical to raise the fee.   

Marianna Ashley, of the Kid’s Club Learning Center, noted it had been difficult to leave her 
business in the middle of the day for the hearing.  She had been surprised at the amount of the 
increase.  Upon contacting other child care facilities, she discovered that many were not 
providing any food at all.  She found they had made that decision based on fee increases and 
additional requirements.  She pointed out the fee for a support kitchen was proposed to be the 
same as the fee for a full kitchen.   

Ms. Ashley had noted that inspectors write down the time an inspection starts and when it 
ends.  It had been observed by herself and others that an inspection takes approximately 20 
minutes, but she has noted times listed ranging from 45 minutes to two hours.  During the 
inspection period, the inspector engages in substantial amounts of conversation with the owner.  
She went on to express concern for the health of the children who are being cared for at the 
centers but not provided anything to eat.  The parents do bring food, but it is often not especially 
nutritious.   



 
December 17, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 12 

Kathleen Cooke, Sunflower Preschool, expressed her understanding that fees need to be 
raised.  She stated she disagreed with some of the reasons for the increases.  She opined the 
notification was insufficient, the timing of the hearing was unfair due to the pressures of the 
season, and the reasoning of making up revenues from the recession did not allow for the fact 
that all businesses had been challenged during that time.  She stated it would not be possible for 
her to raise her fees enough to cover the increase and asked how much they should charge the 
parents, as they were already paying a substantial amount.   

Stephon Van Dyke of Stephon’s Mobile Bistro requested the Board consider the challenge of 
the increased fee to business owners. 

Jennifer Wigmore of the Early Years Academy noted that there was no Support Kitchen fee 
in 2012, so although the rates may not have been raised, the number of required permits had been 
increased.  Both of her most recent inspections were completed at the same time.  She opined the 
amount of work to complete the inspection for the support kitchen did not warrant the amount of 
the fee, particularly when it was conducted at the same time as the annual inspection.  

Paul Sampson opined the fees would have a tremendous effect on local businesses.  
Virginia Blank of Faithful Friends Preschool supported the statements made and reiterated 

that the increase affected what they could offer the children.  She supported the phased-in 
approach.  She suggested there be a surcharge for facilities that received low scores and required 
more visits, and the fees should not increase as much for the ones with the high scores.   

Chair Jung closed the public comment portion of the hearing. 
Mr. Silverman explained the fee issue had been challenging for everyone involved.  He 

understood that in general, acceptable increases were digestible and expected, and he felt it was 
unrealistic for anyone to expect that the fees should stay the same.  He pointed out the Health 
Department had an important role in the community to be sure that businesses are operating 
properly and safely.  He reiterated fees had not been increased in some time.  He stated he did 
not fully understand how all the fees were calculated and fully appreciated the challenges and 
comments that were being made.  He explained that he had spent a substantial amount of effort 
working to be clear that he and the Board would be making a decision that was in everyone’s 
best interests.   

Dr. Hess opined it would have always been necessary to have a small kitchen with a sink and 
refrigerator in a child care facility.  He asked why a kitchen required a separate inspection and 
stated he did not understand the concept of a support kitchen.  Mr. Sack explained they required 
separate permits because some child care facilities do serve food which meets the definition of 
hazardous food.  This includes slicing of fruit.  State law requires a permit for that.  Mr. Sack 
stated the fees for the operation and the kitchen being combined into one could be explored.  
Currently they are separate because some facilities did not have kitchens, and others had kitchens 
of varying sizes.  Dr. Hess expressed concern regarding the lack of a refrigerator at a facility and 
Mr. Sack explained a refrigerator is considered part of the child care facility.   

Mr. Sack explained the permit fees were based on an average, not the time spent in each type 
of different facility.  He acknowledged smaller facilities require less time.   

Chair Jung summarized, noting that the smaller facilities were subsidizing the larger ones.  
Mr. Sack stated that was correct throughout all of the different types of fees, they were all based 
on averages for a category.  Chair Jung asked if the fees for child care facilities could be based 
on the number of students.  Mr. Sack stated the fees could be calculated in a number of ways.  
The current ones were based on the way they have been calculated in the past, but that did not 
stop them from being reevaluated.   



 
December 17, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 12 

Chair Jung noted that typically discussion is held after the motion is made and seconded, but 
she felt the discussion would assist in crafting the motion. 

Chair Jung opined site inspections should be made by appointment, that inspectors are 
expected to conduct themselves in a professional manner and use their time in the most efficient 
way, and that every single time they can do multiple inspections at once, they should. 

Chair Jung stated she would like the fees for the child care facilities to be reviewed and 
possibly restructured based on the size of the facility. 

Chair Jung expressed concern about the effect of child care fees on nutrition due to the fact 
the County had received a Federal grant which supported a program of going to daycare centers 
and teaching them how to provide healthy games, healthy snacks, etc.  She requested that be 
revived. 

Chair Jung agreed with the staff suggestion of reducing inspections and placing more of the 
onus on the violator.  When repeat inspections are necessary, they should pay more.  

Chair Jung requested staff return to the Board with a proposed solution to recordkeeping, 
digitization, and a cost estimate.  She opined the cost would be substantial but worthwhile.   

Chair Jung requested staff review best practices for notification.  She stated it is the public’s 
responsibility to read postcards and look at the newspaper, although she conceded she is not 
diligent about it.  She felt there must be another way to provide noticing and gather community 
input. 

Chair Jung stated that to have a hearing at this time of day, during a business day, is really 
not being inclusive.  She opined it should have been at 6:00 p.m. and that there is probably a way 
that the process can be improved. 

Chair Jung agreed with Dr. Hess in that it makes much more sense to have the fees go into 
effect July 1.  She stated that Mr. Dick had informed her that the cost to push it back would be 
$313 (thousand) for Fiscal Year 2016.   

Chief Brown stated he would like to see a streamlined construction process.  He suggested 
that different agencies could find ways to assist each other and reduce overlap, thus reducing 
costs.   

Dr. Hess noted that the fees for room inspections did not increase in a linear fashion based on 
increasing numbers of rooms.  Mr. Sack explained that the public accommodations that required 
the most work for staff were the ones that have the mid-range number of rooms.  He noted that 
one fee that had been considered was a reinspection fee, as those properties quite often require 
repeat visits.   

Mr. Silverman expressed his concern regarding the fact that some businesses required less 
work but they were supporting larger businesses because they were paying an average fee for the 
category.  He suggested some fees should have a base and be increased in relation to the size of 
the business or project.  Mr. Sack reiterated the methodology used was the same as how it has 
always been done.  In the past, that was not an issue, because they did not include indirect 
charges.  Other methodologies could be used.   

Chair Jung expressed support for Mr. Silverman’s suggestion and requested staff research 
best practices to determine what was possible and fair.  Mr. Sack stated they would be happy to 
look at that.  He reiterated that there were other ways for the fees to be calculated.  Mr. 
Silverman pointed out the fee should be based on level of risk factor.   



 
December 17, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 8 of 12 

Mr. Dick noted the fees were based on application of full-cost methodology to the existing 
structure.  He opined alternatives could be researched and pointed out that any method would 
still result in some inequities.  He compared it to coming up with a fair fee for garbage service, 
as an address that is close to the transfer station pays the same amount as an address in rural 
areas.   

Dr. Novak moved to approve revisions to the Health District Fee Schedule for the 
Environmental Health Services and Air Quality Management as amended with the 
proposed fees recalculated presented in the Septic Disposal and Temporary Food Permits 
fee recalculation sheets.  This motion is to begin with 50% of the fee increase on July 1, 
2016, and 100% of the fee increase beginning on July 1, 2017.  And with an annual 
adjustment based on the Western Consumer Price Index beginning on July 1, 2017.  Fee 
adjustments will be allowed based on workshops and future re-evaluation of the process.  
Staff is requested to return to the Board to address overall concerns, including those 
highlighted at the dais today.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which was approved five in 
favor and Mr. Silverman against.   
10. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 

Presented by Brian Taylor 

A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for October, 2015 

Mr. Taylor reviewed compliance results and offered to answer any questions.  

Chief Brown moved to accept the report as presented.  Dr. Novak seconded the 
motion which was approved six in favor and none against.   
*B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities during October, 2015 

Mr. Taylor explained REMSA had provided additional unit hours for the Zombie Crawl.   

Dr. Novak noted the number of survey respondents was low and pointed out the Board 
had requested that more surveys be sent out so that the number of responses would be higher.  
He expressed concern that the small number of responses did not provide necessary and 
useful information.   

Mr. Taylor explained that Mr. Gubbels was working to increase the numbers and the 
topic was considered to be a high priority.  Dr. Novak requested a progress report at the next 
presentation.  Chair Jung opined it was imperative for REMSA to provide statistically 
significant customer service data and suggested alternative survey methods.   

Ms. Conti explained that after Dr. Hess had originally requested the higher number of 
responses, he had worked with Kevin Romero of REMSA to increase the number of surveys 
distributed.  She noted it had been anticipated there would be a delay in receipt of the results, 
so the January report should reflect the new percentages.   

Mr. Dick noted the holiday Board meeting schedule causes more of a lag than usual for 
the REMSA reports.  During the October REMSA Board meeting, Mr. Gubbels reported to 
them that the survey distribution rate would be increased to 40 percent.  Dr. Novak reiterated 
his request for a process report in January.   

Don Vonarx, Vice President of Information for REMSA, verified that the sampling size 
had been increased to 40 percent in November.  He reported that the return rate was 
approximately seven percent when the sampling size was 100 percent.  He stated they would 
continue to adjust as necessary.   



 
December 17, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 9 of 12 

11. Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for November Fiscal 
Year 2016  
Staff Representative: Anna Heenan 
Ms. Heenan reviewed the highlights of the staff report.   
Dr. Hess asked if the revenues displayed in the report could reflect the fee increases.  Ms. 

Heenan explained it was possible, and the new Accela software would provide additional 
reporting mechanisms to track the number of permits and the revenue coming in.   

Chair Jung requested the reports be included in Ms. Heenan’s monthly financial review, to 
include comparisons between pre-and post-increase revenues.   

Dr. Novak thanked Ms. Heenan for breaking down the liabilities and opined it would be 
helpful if it was broken down in the report so that the public had access to the information.   

Mr. Silverman suggested the number of permits and inspections also be tracked as well as the 
fees. 

Chair Jung suggested that if Ms. Heenan had questions about what information the requester 
would like included she should contact them directly.   

Chief Brown moved to acknowledge the presentation as provided.  Mr. Silverman 
seconded the motion which was approved six in favor and none against.   
12. Discussion, acknowledge and possible direction to staff on the Phase Two and Three Cost 

Analysis for the Health District – Fundamental Review Recommendation #10 
Staff Representative: Anna Heenan 
Ms. Heenan reviewed the staff report.  She noted that approximately 87 percent of direct 

costs are due to staffing, so particular attention was paid to reviewing the current staffing 
structure to be sure it was the proper mix for the work activities.  She reviewed details of the 
findings.  She noted a challenge to the cost analysis was the lack of a good time accounting 
system, and explained that a better one is under development.  The new permitting and case 
management systems will allow for more accurate reporting.   

Dr. Hess opined the conclusion noted in the staff report was unhelpful as funding was not 
available for staff increases.  He suggested practices and policies be reviewed for potential 
efficiencies and opined some of the calculations for patient times seemed excessive.  Ms. Heenan 
explained the calculations included all staff time associated with a service, and therefore the time 
was more than just the actual time spent with the client.  Dr. Hess reiterated that additional 
funding sources would need to be located if staff increases were necessary. 

Mr. Dick explained the type of work done at the Health District was not quite the same as 
what was conducted in a physician’s office, as it included contact investigations and getting 
people in for testing.   

[Vice Chair Ratti disconnected from the meeting at 3:00 p.m.] 
Mr. Kutz reiterated that the time accounting system was imperfect but was improving.  He 

also reiterated that many services did not fit into the classic medical office case management 
model, but he would be looking more closely at the service hours that Dr. Hess had referenced.  
Chair Jung suggested Dr. Hess spend some time with staff in the clinic and potentially provide 
some feedback.   

Mr. Dick acknowledged Ms. Heenan’s work and noted it completes the cost analysis of all 
Health District programs.  He also acknowledged the effective joint effort of the division 
directors and supervisors to provide the necessary information.   

Mr. Dick opined one area in particular that was experiencing staff limitations was the 



 
December 17, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 10 of 12 

Chronic Disease program, and that the community would benefit from more activity in that area.   
Chair Jung pointed out the report was also suggesting moving staff as necessary to properly 

balance workload.   
Ms. Heenan stated she would not have been able to compile the report without the support of 

the management team and complemented their focus on transparency and accuracy.   
Dr. Novak thanked staff for all of their work and explained he understood their 

recommendations for rebalancing.  He acknowledged it may be necessary to increase staffing.   
Chair Jung asked that a copy of the report be sent to the County Manager on her behalf so 

that it may be replicated in other departments.   
Dr. Hess moved to acknowledge receipt of the report.  Dr. Novak seconded the motion 

which was approved five in favor and none against.   
13. *Staff Reports and Program Updates 

A. Air Quality Management, Charlene Albee, Director 
Program Update, Divisional Update, Program Reports 

Chair Jung congratulated Ms. Albee on the fact that for the first year since 1970 Washoe 
County had attained EPA air quality standards.  She opined Ms. Albee deserved substantial 
credit.  Chair Jung expounded on the importance of the achievement. 

Ms. Albee reviewed some of the programs and activities that have been established to 
help achieve the goal.   

B. Community and Clinical Health Services, Steve Kutz, Director 
Divisional Update, Program Reports 

Mr. Kutz stated he had nothing to add but would be happy to answer questions. 

C. Environmental Health Services, Bob Sack, Director 
EHS Division Update, Program Updates - Food, IBD, Land Development, Vector-Borne 
Disease and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan Review 

Mr. Sack explained the E-coli investigation was winding down and staff continues to 
work with one of the affected facilities.  He noted the number of inspections conducted was 
included in the monthly report, and included an annual cumulative total which displays year-
over-year comparisons.   

Mr. Silverman asked Mr. Sack if he was at liberty to discuss the true source of the E-coli 
outbreak and Mr. Sack stated he was not, as it was still under investigation.  

Chair Jung asked if staff had reached out to the School District regarding helping them 
implement new practices to limit the Norovirus outbreaks.  Mr. Sack explained that Dr. Todd 
would be covering that in his report, but EHS and EPHP work together very closely during 
those types of outbreaks.   

D. Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, Dr. Randall Todd, Director 
Program Updates for Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, and 
Emergency Medical Services 

Dr. Todd reported the investigation had been closed for each of the affected facilities.  
There had been in excess of 2,000 cases and some facilities had continued to be affected for 
an extraordinary amount of time.  Staff will be working with the School District to suggest 
strategies to shorten future outbreaks.   



 
December 17, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 11 of 12 

Dr. Todd noted an area of particular concern with regards to the E-coli outbreak was the 
number of Hemolytic-uremic Syndrome (HUS) cases.  Typically approximately 10 percent of 
the cases develop the syndrome.  For this case it was 19.2 percent.  He explained that if 
antibiotics are given to an E-coli patient, it increases the odds they will develop HUS, so staff 
has been reaching out to healthcare facilities to share that knowledge.  Dr. Hess suggested 
that be included in the next edition of Epi-News.  Chair Jung suggested he mention it while 
being interviewed by the media, to help educate the public.   

Chair Jung requested she be informed of any pushback from the School District.   

E. Office of the District Health Officer, Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP), Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities, 
Health District Interlocal Agreement, Other Events and Activities and Health District 
Media Contacts 

Mr. Dick explained comments from the CHIP Steering Committee were being 
incorporated into the plan, and the goal was to bring it back to the Board at the January 
meeting.   

Mr. Dick explained the strategic planning process would be kicked off on December 18, 
and OnStrategy staff would be requesting interviews with each of the Board members.  They 
were reviewing documentation to familiarize themselves with the operations of the Health 
District.   

Mr. Dick noted the County Manager was hosting an open house immediately following 
the meeting and had requested Mr. Dick extend an invitation to the Board members.   

14. *Board Comment 

Chair Jung requested a plan be developed to address the security of potentially challenging 
meetings.  She indicated she would like a full safety analysis to include the potential for holding 
meetings in the Chambers and having deputies present.  This type of analysis is being conducted 
County-wide. 

Mr. Dick explained the County was focusing more attention on security issues and the Health 
District would be working cooperatively with the County. 

Dr. Hess opined the meetings should be kept as open as possible, and Chair Jung explained it 
was not her intent to work to keep them more closed, just safer.   

15. Emergency Items 

None. 
16. *Public Comment 

As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair Jung closed the public comment period. 
17. Adjournment 

At 3:09 p.m., Chair Jung adjourned the meeting.   
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Respectfully submitted, 



December 17, 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 12 of 12 

Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
Secretary to the District Board of Health 

Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary 
Recording Secretary 

Approved by Board in session on _______________, 2016. 



COMMUNITY AND CLINICAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
CCHS Phone: 775-328-2441   I   Fax: 775-328-3750   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  January 28, 2016 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Steve Kutz, RN, MPH, Director, Community and Clinical Health Services 
775-328-6159; skutz@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Accept cash donation in the amount of $3,000 from Arctica Ice Sales to purchase 
Long Acting Reversible Contraceptives (LARCs) to help decrease high unintended 
pregnancy rates; approve amendments totaling an increase of $3,000 in both revenue 
and expense to the FY16 Arctica Ice Donation budget, IO-20424.  

SUMMARY 
Pursuant to Chapter 15 of Washoe County Code, specifically section 15.160, an officer or employee 
of a department or agency of the county may accept personal property for the use and benefit of the 
county where the value singly or in the aggregate is less than $3,000 from a contributor during a fiscal 
year.  In such event, the officer or employee will notify the board in writing of the acceptance.   

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Secure and deploy resources for 
sustainable impact. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action taken by the Board. 

BACKGROUND 
Washoe County Health District’s Family Planning Program received a $3,000 corporate donation 
from Arctica Ice Sales to purchase Long Acting Reversible Contraceptives to help decrease high 
unintended pregnancy rates.  The program plans on purchasing 60 Liletta IUDs with these funds. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the board accept this cash donation, the adopted FY16 budget will be increased by $3,000 in 
the following accounts: 

Amount of 
Account Number  Description Increase/(Decrease) 
2002-IO-20424 -484000 Donations  $3,000 

Total Revenue $3,000 

DD___________ 
DHO__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.

SK

mailto:skutz@washoecounty.us


Subject: Accept cash donation 
Date: January 28, 2016  
Page 2 of 2 

2002-IO-20424 -710703 Biologicals $3,000 
Total Expenditures $3,000 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health accept cash donation in the amount of $3,000 from 
Arctica Ice Sales to purchase Long Acting Reversible Contraceptives (LARCs) to help decrease high 
unintended pregnancy rates; approve amendments totaling an increase of $3,000 in both revenue and 
expense to the FY16 Arctica Ice Donation budget, IO-20424.  

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to accept cash donation in the amount of $3,000 from Arctica Ice Sales to purchase Long 
Acting Reversible Contraceptives (LARCs) to help decrease high unintended pregnancy rates; 
approve amendments totaling an increase of $3,000 in both revenue and expense to the FY16 Arctica 
Ice Donation budget, IO-20424.  



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
EHS Phone: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD 
DHO 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  January 28, 2016 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: James English, Environmental Health Specialist Supervisor 
775-328-2610, jenglish@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Appoint Vonnie L. Fundin to the Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Hearing Board 
(SWS Board) for a three-year term beginning January 28, 2016 and ending on January 
27, 2019.   

SUMMARY 
Environmental Health Services staff has been actively recruiting for individuals to fill the seats 
vacated on the SWS Board.  At the current time one individual has come forward willing to serve on 
the SWS Board. 

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Strengthen District-wide 
infrastructure to improve public health. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
During the September 25, 2014 District Board of Health (DBOH) meeting, Environmental Health 
Services staff recommended reappointment of two members to the SWS Board and requested 
direction regarding current and upcoming vacancies.  The DBOH instructed staff to proceed with 
recruitment and provide the names of potential appointees for selection.   

During October of 2014, staff advertised the vacancies through internet postings, professional 
organizational postings, governmental agency postings and by word of mouth. 

In March of 2015, the Board approved the recommendation to appoint Matthew Buehler to the SWS 
Board for a three-year term.   

BACKGROUND 
The SWS Board considers regulation changes and variance applications pertaining to sewage, 
wastewater, sanitation, and well drilling.  Over the years, staff has sought professionals in these 
fields to provide valuable expertise to support and enhance technical knowledge provided by 
program staff. 

During the month of December 2015, Vonnie L. Fundin, of Fundin Pump and Well Service 
submitted a cover letter and resume stating his interest in participating on the SWS Board.  Mr. 
Fundin meets the requirements of a general contractor and has over fifty years of water well 
industry experience.    

EHS will continue to pursue outreach options to fill the two remaining seats on the seven-
member SWS Board, one of which must be an attorney licensed in the State of Nevada.  

BS

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.



Subject: Appointment to the Sewage, Wastewater and Sanitation Hearing Board   
Date:   January 13, 2016 
Page:   2 of 2 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no additional fiscal impact to the FY16 budget should the Board approve this appointment to 
the SWS Board. 

 



FIINDIN PUMP &WELL SERVICE

t1030 Eastloke &lvd.

WashoeVolley, NV 89704

77549-7027 Ulic&319WUc.7172O

December 75,2075

Washoe County
Sewoge Wostewater
& Sonitotion Boord

Deor Boord Members,

My Name is Vonnie L Fundin. ! wos recently opprooched by Wes Rubio, Senior Environmentol Heolth Speciolist

with Woshoe County. Wes osked if Iwould be interested in being a participont of the Woshoe County Sewoge

Wostewater & Sonitotion 8oord.

I hove over 52 years of experience in the woter well industry ond feel thot my knowledge in this field could be o

of some help toyour boord. I would oppreciote the opportunity to work with you.

I hove attached my Resume for your review,

Thank You,,/)/** d
Vonnie L Fundin



FUNDIN PUMP & WELL SERVICE

Nv l,c 71720

4O3O Eos'/o,h. BIYd.

wotl|o. Votky, lN 8!t7U
E mal t : wnfl lti| 7 Q cho ft e L nct

7754974t27 CA U.- 64:2379

RESUME

Vonni€ L. Fundin
/t030 Eastlake Blvd.

washoe Valley, Nv 89704
77 5-A49-LO27

History of exp€rience and emgloyment -

1952-1977 my Father Lyle Fundin started Arte5ia Pump Company in Artesia California' In 1956 he started

manufacturing Venical and submeEible pumps. We made allthe components etcept the el€ctrlc motors. At

the age of Twelve l worl(ed in the machine shop after school running a lathe At Fou'teen I was tunnlng a

pump pulling ri& serviclng well pumps durlngthe summer.

tn lg6a *tesia iump Co. relocated to Chino California and we purchased ourfi.st Well DrlllinS Rig and in 1956

we purchased a addltlonal drilling rig and I operated one rig and my brother operated the second dg and we

continued to drill over 4OO wells In Chino and surroundinS areas.

1977 - 1979 My Father, MFalf and my younSlr Erother went into a Pann€r5hip and cteated F!ndln well

Drillint. we mov€d our company to Yucca valley Glifornia and purchased a new Well Drilling Ri8'

1979 - 1983 Fundin W€ll DrillinS Purchased the Fairbanls Morse assembv plant in Fresno california and

moved it to Indio Glifomla where we stocked Turbin and submersible pumps up to 15" and manufactured

tube and shafu, ass€mbled and shipp€d to customers. We also purchated 2 additional drilling rigs and drilled

municipal and agriculture wells in th€ Indio and surroundin8 areas as well as continuing our business in Yuccl

Valley. I was totally involved in the workings of this company, Management, salet machinist

1983 - 1985 we dissolved the partn€rship and we started Precision Pump & Drilling in lndio Callfornia, We

purchased a orilling Rig and Pump service Rlg and wlth my wlfe, son and one employee drilled and s€rviced

wells in the Indlo and surrounding areas.

1985 - 1985 | was approached by Mccalla Bros. Well & Pump. They were in the process of opening a

additional branch oftheir company in the Coachilta Valley callfomia and asked me to help manage this branch.

They purchased our equipment and my Son and Myself went to work for them, I was supervisor ofdrillin&
pump repalr and estimator.

Page 1 of 2



PaEe2 of 2

1986 - 1989 After on€ year Mc{all 8ros. Sold to Layne Westem Pump & DrlllinS and I continued to work with

Layne western supervisinS the drilllng and repair ofturbin pumps for municipal and aSricuhure wells'

1969 - 2Om I bft Layne wlstarn and went back in business as Precision Pump & Drilling in Indlo and later

moved to Yucca ValleY to work alonSside my Father and Brother servicing wells and pumps'

2OOO - 2OO9 We sold Preclsion Pump to my Erother and moved to Washoe Valleyto be closer to our 5on Jeff

and his tamily. Jeff worked for Brucc MacLy Pump & wellservice in Reno' Bruce MacKay aPproached me and

my wife and made us a offer to come and work in his company in management. lwas supervisor ofdrillin&

machinlst and estimator.

2OO9 - I retired from Bruce MacKaY.

2O1O - We started Fundin Pump & Wellservice in W.shoe valley' We continue to service and repair pumps

and wells in washoe vall€y and surroundlng areas' On January 1st of 2015' our son leff and his wife will be

coming on as additional owner's of Fundin Pump & Well Servic€

Credentials: Ne\rada Water Well Driller's Ucense f 2OO5 Nevada State Conttactors license 
' 

74720' Glifomla

Conractor's license S 542319.

q/",* g4rJ-
vonnie L. Fundin



OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
ODHO Phone: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  January 28, 2016 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Sara Dinga, Director of Programs and Projects 
(775) 328-2401, sdinga@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Update on Quality Improvement Processes for Health District Services  

SUMMARY 
In an effort to improve the quality of services for Health District clients and the community at-large, 
the Health District has trained all staff on quality improvement (QI) processes, and continues to utilize 
annual data to make improvements to the Health District’s QI program.  Multiple QI teams have 
formed within the Health District and are working on projects to improve processes. 

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item: Strengthen District-wide infrastructure 
to improve public health, Secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact, and Strengthen WCHD 
as an innovative, high- performing organization. 

Fundamental Review recommendation supported by this item: Develop an organizational culture 
to support quality by taking visible leadership steps. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
Approval of the Fundamental Review recommendations implementation plan, to include quality 
improvement activities occurred in March 2014, following the February 2014 Fundamental Review 
Report.  A summary of those recommendations are included directly below under “Background.” 

BACKGROUND 
The Washoe County Health District Fundamental Review recommended the Health District develop 
an organizational culture to support quality by taking visible leadership steps.  The Health District 
launched a QI initiative and has a number of accomplishments. 

• Development of a QI Plan

• QI training for all staff

• Annual QI survey sent and results analyzed

• QI Report Out Process developed

• Divisions currently implementing QI projects using what they learned from the training
The Health District has been able to identify process improvements and efficiencies utilizing quality 
improvement approaches and several projects will be presented during the DBOH meeting. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no additional fiscal impact to the FY16 budget. 

DHO__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 NOV.A.

































DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 NOV. B.











DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10. DEC. A.































DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10. DEC. B.









EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
EPHP Office: 775-326-6055   I   Fax: 775-325-8130   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: January 28, 2016 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Christina Conti, EMS Program Manager 
775-326-6042, cconti@washoecounty.us 

Subject:  Regional Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board January Meeting Summary 

The Regional EMS Advisory Board (Board) held its quarterly meeting on January 7, 2016.  Below is 
a summary of the main items discussed: 

• Updates to the EMSAB: The Board heard updates on several regional initiatives, to
include the implementation of ALS in the City of Reno Fire Department, ILS within the
region for REMSA and EMS coverage for the Gerlach Volunteer Fire Department’s
jurisdiction.

• EMS Oversight Program Quarter 1 FY 15/16 Data Report: The Board reviewed the
Quarter 1 data report for FY 15/16.  The report was not approved for distribution as there
were some concerns over data anomalies that the Board would like rectified prior to
distribution.  Additionally, the new format for the data report utilizes National Standards
as a way of performance comparisons.  During the meeting, it was discussed that
individual jurisdictions may elect to have their respective Councils review the 2011
Standards of Coverage document as well.  This item will be brought back to the Board
for future discussion and direction to staff.

• Fire EMS Trainings: The Board received an update on the Fire EMS trainings that have
been occurring for the first two quarters of the fiscal year.  It is a collaborative effort
between regional fire partners and REMSA personnel and is conducted in the REMSA
simulation lab.  Fire partners worked with REMSA personnel and the EMS Coordinator
to determine the topics for training.

• REMSA Response Map Revision: The Board reviewed and approved the revised draft
response map for REMSA.  The EMS Manager will present the draft map to the District
Board of Health for final approval.

• Omega Protocols: The Board heard an update that outlined the work the region
continues to do on the development of Omega protocols. Legal representatives from each
jurisdiction have met and a draft policy has been written.  The region is working to
schedule a meeting with both legal and operational representatives.

• Mutual Aid Process within Washoe County: The Board heard an update on the
assignment regarding the utilization of mutual aid within the region.  The EMS Oversight
Program will be working with regional partners to further identify opportunities for
improvement to enhance EMS services within Washoe County.

DD___________ 
DHO__________ 

RT
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.

mailto:cconti@washoecounty.us


EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
EPHP Office: 775-326-6055   I   Fax: 775-325-8130   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  January 28, 2016 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Christina Conti, EMS Program Manager  
775-326-6042, cconti@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Discussion and possible approval of the draft REMSA response zones map within the 
Washoe County REMSA ambulance franchise service area. 

SUMMARY 
The purpose of this agenda item is present the progress the region has made with regards to the 
revision of the response zones within the Washoe County REMSA ambulance franchise service area. 
Consensus has been reached inside the franchise service area and the draft map will be presented for 
approval.   

PREVIOUS ACTION 
During the March 2015 EMS Advisory Board (EMSAB) meeting, as part of the program update, 
staff reviewed the meeting held between EMS personnel, District Health Officer Kevin Dick and 
REMSA staff on Monday, February 23, 2015.  The purpose of the meeting was to discuss the 
franchise service area and propose changes to the response map.   

EMSAB members recommended a meeting with regional partners to discuss the proposed 
changes.  The recommended changes to the map included Sparks special zone 5.1 as well as the 
Mount Rose corridor.  

During the June 2015 EMSAB, EMSAB members approved the project charter that outlined the 
process for revising the response zones within the Washoe County REMSA ambulance franchise 
service area.   

EMSAB members approved a presentation on the revision process during the October 23, 2015 
meeting.   

During the EMSAB meeting on January 7, 2016, the Board heard an update on the progress and 
reviewed a draft map for the franchise service area.  The Board approved the presentation and 
recommended the EMS Manager present the draft map for approval to the District Board of 
Health.   

BACKGROUND 
During the March 2015 EMSAB meeting, it was recommended that the EMS Working Group 
reconvene to discuss the proposed map revisions.  This meeting was held on April 15, 2015 and 

DD___________ 
DHO__________ 

RTDBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



Subject: Franchise Area Map Zones 
Date: January 28, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 
 
had representatives from all regional fire partners, WCSO, WCHD, and REMSA.  Since the 
Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement removed the provision of the City’s Boundaries 
forming the basis of the response zones it was determined that the historical method of updating the 
map based on reviews of annexed areas should be updated to be based on criteria such as standards of 
coverage.  
The EMS Program staff developed a project charter that provided a structure to the project, to include 
objectives and a timeline for the revision process.  The charter was used by the EMS Working Group 
subcommittee to modernize the Washoe County REMSA ambulance franchise response zones, based 
on specific criteria and quantifiable measures.  

The first subcommittee meeting was held on May 19, 2015.  During the meeting, 
recommendations to the project charter were discussed and the document was approved. The 
next steps were proposed, to include obtaining the approval of the proposed path by the EMS 
Advisory Board.   

 
In June, EMS staff, along with Gary Zaepfel from Washoe County GIS, went to San Joaquin 
County, Stockton, CA, to meet with their EMS Oversight Program.  The meeting was excellent 
and the EMS Oversight Program was able to learn about several different processes that could be 
explored regionally.   
 
EMS staff met with regional fire/REMSA partners on June 22, 2015 to review the Stockton trip 
and the information obtained from contractor Insprionix, which had developed their regional 
response map.   During this meeting, the methodology for map development was agreed to and 
the process for developing the maps was established.  It was agreed that the region would 
primarily utilize population density, provided by the census report, and not call data.  In addition, 
a methodology for future reviews of the map was discussed.   
 
EMS staff, along with Mr. Zaepfel, have met with or corresponded with regional partners several 
times over the last nine months to develop a revised franchise area response map.  With the 
assistance of Mr. Zaefpel, the region sent several data layers to Inspironix for review, analysis 
and recommendation.  Inspironix developed a draft response map that the region began 
reviewing on August 26, 2015.  During the meeting, the methodology for developing the draft 
map was reviewed and the proposed changes to the existing map were reviewed. 
 
Mr. Zaepfel developed a PDF map with layers that included the draft zones, existing zones and 
call data for a 20 week period of time.  The region met on September 25, 2015 to review the 
interactive map.  The region determined that there were three areas of specific concern to review, 
the Spanish Springs and Cold Springs designations as well as the Southern Reno extension.   
 
Over the course of the next three months, the region met on several different occasions to review 
the areas.  Consensus was reached in both Spanish Springs and Cold Springs before the October 
23, 2015 EMSAB meeting.  Concerns regarding the feasibility of the Zone A extending as far 
south as recommended were listened to by regional partners.  The EMS Oversight Program 
reached back out to Inspironix for some options to apply to the Southern Reno area.  Inspironix 
provided seven options for the region to consider, with the caveat that the first four options 
should be strongly considered before moving on to the more aggressive options of the last three.   



Subject: Franchise Area Map Zones 
Date: January 28, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
The last meeting was held on Monday, December 14, 2015.  Regional consensus was reached for 
the South Reno extension.  Inspironix options A and B were included as a modification to the 
original recommendation.  The original methodology of looking at the population density with a 
call volume overlay supported the decision to downgrade two areas of South Reno to a Zone B.   
 
The EMS partners within the franchise area have reached a regional consensus.  However, the 
final area that needed to be reviewed was the Mount Rose corridor, specifically where the 
REMSA franchise boundary ends and the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District (NLTFPD) 
ambulance service area begins.  The EMS Oversight Program was a part of several meetings, 
beginning in July 2015, between REMSA and NLTFPD discussing the Mount Rose corridor.  It 
has been agreed that the boundary along Mount Rose will follow the voted upon boundary from 
the 1982 special election. The special election consisted of one question relating to an additional 
tax ad valorem to provide paramedic ambulance service.  The constituents in the Incline 
Village/Crystal Bay region were the eligible voters.   
Once the REMSA response zone map is approved, REMSA and the EMS Program can work on 
implementation of the response zone map and bring a timeline and implementation plan to the 
District Board of Health for approval.  It is anticipated that this could occur in February 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact to the FY 15/16 budget should the Board approve the draft map response 
zones within the Washoe County REMSA ambulance franchise service area.  
 

However, there is an anticipated financial impact to REMSA with the approval of the new franchise 
map.  An impact analysis is being conducted to determine the effects of the new franchise response 
zones.   

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board approve the draft REMSA response zones map within the Washoe 
County REMSA ambulance franchise service.  

POSSIBLE MOTION   
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: “Move to approve 
the draft REMSA response zones map within the Washoe County REMSA ambulance franchise 
service area.” 



I580S
B
 F

Y

I5
8
0
N

B
 F

Y

I-8
0 E

I-8
0 W

US-50

North-South Fwy S

North-South Fwy N

U
S

-3
9
5
 S

U
S

-3
9
5

 N

Mount Rose Hwy

R
e

d
 R

o
c
k
 R

d

N
V-

28

N Virginia St

NV-79

W
u
n
o
to

o
 R

d

NFD 100 Rd

Mill St

Toll R
d

G
o

n
i 
R

d

V
is

ta
 B

lv
d

E
a

s
tl
a

k
e

 B
lv

d

W 4th St

A
m

y
 R

d

S McCarran Blvd

S
 V

irginia S
t

Geiger Grade Rd

Kings Canyon Rd

P
y
ra

m
id

 L
a
ke

 R
d

W 7th St

A
n

te
lo

p
e

 V
a

lle
y
 R

d

S
p

a
rk

s
 B

lv
d

G St

C
ou

nt
y 

R
d 

20
1

Lo
us

et
ow

n 
R

d

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

w
y
-2

9
3

NFD 049 Rd

W
ilcox Ranch Rd

Whiskey Springs Rd

C
 S

t

Lemmon Dr

M
a

in
 S

t

Eagle Canyon Dr

N
V

-3
4
1

Brunswick Canyon Rd

Disc Dr

E 5th St

L
e

o
n

 D
r

Snyder Ave

M
a

t t
e

rh
o

rn
 B

l v
d

NFD 0
41 T

rl

Lakeshore Blvd

N McCarran Blvd

Greg St

Appian Way

Lone Tree Ln

E Greg St

Cartwright Rd

E 4th St

O
ld U

S
 H

ighw
ay 395 N

H
un

te
r L

ak
e 

R
d

P
e
a
vi

n
e
 R

d

Mayberry Dr

Sharrock Rd

Wedekind Rd

N
F
D

 0
38

 R
d

Silver Lake Rd

S
u

tr
o

 S
t

L
in

e
h

a
n

 R
d

O
s
a

g
e

 R
d

Tahoe Blvd

Argosy Rd

Kings Row

P
lu

m
a

s
 S

t

G
ra

s
s
 V

a
lle

y
 R

d

B
 S

t

64
5/

64
5 

A

Argonaught Way

Ophir Grade

N
e

il  R
d

Old Clear Creek Rd

Echo Ave

S
te

a
d

 B
l v

d

NFD 051 Rd

La Posada Dr

NFD 047 Rd

W
ild

 H
o

rs
e

 R
d

Quilici Rd

L
o

n
g

 V
a

ll e
y
 R

d

Vassar St

C
ou

nt
y 

H
w

y-
29

5

S
 C

u
rr

y
 S

t

Oregon Blvd

Lear Blvd

Prater Way

Dayton Valley Rd

D
ouble R

 B
lvd

V
e

te
ra

n
s
 P

k
w

y

Old Hwy 40

Deodar Way

Tanks Rd

Canyon W
ay

La Mancha Dr

Twin Springs Rd

Franktown Rd

Om
ni D

r

H
il l

 L
n

E Nye Ln

River R
d

S
cott R

d

Oddie Blvd

Ir
o

n
w

o
o

d
 R

d

S
u

n
 V

a
lle

y
 B

lv
d

M
o

y
a

 B
l v

d

Zolezzi Ln

V
ista T

rl

P
e

a
k
 R

d

Industrial P
kw

y
Axe Handle Rd

Stirr
up D

r

H
ighlands D

r

S
ky

lin
e 

B
lv

d

Fir Dr

3rd
 S

t

Am
eric

an
 F

la
t R

d

Enca
nto

 D
r

Idlewild Dr

Alamosa Dr

L
o
n
g
le

y 
L
n

California Ave

E 9th St

S
a

g
e
 F

la
t 

R
d

Bravo Ave

I St

Pembroke Dr

W
in

n
e
m

u
cca

 R
a
n
ch

 R
d

P
yr

am
id

 L
ak

e 
H

w
y

Los Altos Pkwy

Unnamed Street

4WD Road

Euskera Dr

Dolores Dr

Serenity Pl

S Verdi Rd

Greenbrae Dr

Y
u

k
o

n
 D

r

L
e

s
a

k
a

 R
d

Koontz Ln

Marle
tte

 Lake R
d

S M
ead

ow
s 

Pkw
y

Baring Blvd

W Moana Ln

York Way

Ash Canyon Rd

N
O

 2
5
0
 C

o
u
n
ty

 R
d

U
S-395

S
 E

d
m

o
n

d
s
 D

r

C
a

lla
h
a
n
 R

d

Joy Lake Rd

S
u

l li v
a

n
 L

n

Douglas Dr

S
id

e
h

ill
 D

r

E Long St

Mira Loma Dr

Canyon Park
E 2nd St

L
 S

t

H
ig

h
 S

t

S
 R

o
ck

 B
lv

d

Quaking Aspen Rd

P
a

s
tu

re
 V

ie
w

 R
d

Las Brisas Blvd

B
ro

k
e

n
 S

p
u

r 
R

d

E Plumb Ln

O
c
c
id

e
n

ta
l 
G

ra
d

e

N
 S

ie
rra

 S
t

A
lu

m
 R

o
ck

 R
d

P
ro

sp
ec

t H
ill
 R

d

A
ir

p
o

rt
 R

d

Jumbo Grade Way

Clean Water Way

N
 H

ills B
lvd

W
h

ite
 L

a
k
e

 P
k
w

y

F
 S

t

Carat Ave

W 2nd St

L
o

c
u

s
t 

S
t

County
 H

wy-
160

V
a

lle
y
 R

d

B
a

c
o

n
 R

in
d

 R
d

Cold Springs Dr

D
ixon

 L
n

C
e

n
te

r D
r

W 7th Ave

Kleppe Ln

H
u

b
b

le
 D

r

S
k
y V

ista
 P

k
w

y

S
 S

a
lim

a
n

 R
d

N
O

 1
0

2
 C

o
u

n
ty

 R
d

E 7th Ave

C
oun

try C
lu

b D
r

A St

A
irw

a
y D

r

Bedell Rd

L
a

k
e

s
id

e
 D

r

Sitka St

Manzanita Ln

Ja
mes A

ve

K
ie

tz
k
e

 L
n

Marsh Ave

Virgil Dr

Peri Ranch Rd

Columbia H
ill 

Rd

L
y
o

n
 L

n

Scorpion Rd

Freeport Blvd

M
ira

 L
o

m
a

 R
d

Dragstrip Rd

G
ol

df
ie

ld
 R

d

Quartz Ln

Topsy Ln

H
o

w
a

r d
 D

r

Northgate Dr

Ramp

Flint Dr

Nye Dr

L
a

k
e

 S
h

o
re

 D
r

Goldstone Rd

Je
nn

ife
r 
S
t

Kuenzli St

Dandini Blvd

E 8th Ave

H
u
n
g
ry

 V
a
lle

y
 R

d

B
u
n
k
e
r 

H
ill

 M
in

e
 R

d

Nectar St

Boarry Dr

D
e
e
rl
o
dg

e
 R

d

E 4th Ave

C
o
u
n
ty

 H
w

y-
2
0
4

B
u

llfro
g

 R
d

S
ilv

e
r 

S
a

g
e

 D
r

Barrel Springs Rd

Fo
ot

hi
ll 

R
d

Foster Dr

Trail Dr

Fai
rv

ie
w D

r

Tyner W
ay

E
rin D

r

Y
o

ri
 A

v
e

County 
Hwy-

202

M
o

u
n

ta
in

 S
t

Y
o

u
n

g
s
 R

d

R
a
ls

to
n
 S

t

Ski W
ay

Prairie Rd

Arrowhead Dr

Beckwourth Dr

C
ou

nt
y 

H
w

y-
20

1

Bellevue Rd

NO 282 C
ounty 

Rd

Navarra Dr

E
m

p
ir
e
 R

d

E
states R

d

G
ro

s
h

 A
v
e

Sch
aad L

n

M St

Wayside Rd

Alexander Lake Rd

Clark Dr

Bain Spring Rd

Indian Ln

R
o

b
b

 D
r

O
ve

rla
nd

 R
d

E William St

Hoge Rd

N
O

 3
3
7
 C

o
u
n
ty

 R
d

Spring Dr

S
 R

o
o

p
 S

t

Morgan Mill Rd

W
este

rn
 S

kie
s D

r

Y
e

llo
w

 T
a

il 
R

d

W
 C

al
le

 d
e 

la
 P

la
ta

L
i ll

a
rd

 D
r

Timberline Dr

D St

Mount Rose St

Palisade Rd

E 6th St

E 9th Ave

Ridgeview Dr

Lakes Blvd

Colorado St

B
renda W

ay

Detar Pl

Simons Dr

E M
ustang R

d

Conestoga Dr

N
 D

e
e
r R

u
n
 R

d

Tranquil Dr

W
a

s
h

in
g

to
n

 S
t

Chickadee Dr

Shadow Ln

W
hite Pine Dr

Highland Ranch Pkwy

C
o
rd

o
b
a
 B

lv
d

Leo Dr

Combs Canyon Rd

Plateau R
d

Sha Neva Rd

Big Dog Rd

Chieftan Rd

F
a

w
n

 L
n

Voltaire Canyon Rd

R
id

g
e
 R

N
O

 49 C
ounty R

d

S Sutro Ter

C
arson R

iver R
d

W Huffaker Ln

B
e
rn

o
u
lli

 S
t

Seneca Dr

Norton Dr

N
 L

o
m

p
a

 L
n

Mario Rd

E Prater Way

Utah St

Fantasy Ln

Baccarat Rd

Ryland St

E Glendale Ave

Stampede Rd

Dorff Ln

A
ve

n
id

a
 d

e
 L

a
n
d
a

M
e

x
ic

a
n

 D
a
m

 R
d

Valle Verde Dr

C
le

a
r A

c
re

 L
n

Sazarac Rd

W
ilb

u
r 

M
a

y 
P

k
w

y

College Pkwy

Jacks Valley Rd

Pedlar Rd

B
a
k
e
r 

D
r

Ventana Pkwy

Boron Ln

Q
u
ilici R

a
n

c
h

 R
d

G
e

n
tr

y
 L

n

Leilani Ln

N
FD

 0
42

 T
rl

B
ridge S

t

Fre
ds

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
R
d

Cau
gh

lin
 P

kw
y

Loop Rd

Bellhaven Ln

Canyon Dr

Las B
risas R

d

E York Way

C
a

m
p

o
 P

o
c
o

 R
d

Hobart Rd

Bryan St

E
 P

atrician D
r

F
a
irvie

w
 B

lvd

C
a

rre
ra

 R
d

Jennifer Lee Ln

Alena Way

Piute Creek Rd

Calle de la Plata

Musket Rd

B
lu

e
ja

c
k
e

t  
R

d

R
icci R

d

NFD 041 Rd

Belford Rd

C
o

u
n

t y
 H

w
y
- 2

0
0

M
a

rke
t S

t

Bronze Hill Rd

Right Hand Canyon Rd

Cygnet Dr

C
h

o
c
o

la
t e

 D
r

Ja
yb

ir
d
 R

d

Y
e

a
rl

in
g

 R
d

Ruby Hill Rd

E Grove St

Trademark Dr
C

ounty H
w

y-161

Monroe St

Barranca Dr

Leroy St

S
p

e
a

rh
e

a
d

 W
a

y

Hillside DrK
it K

a
t D

r

Paris Ave

B
ig

e
lo

w
 D

r

Selmi Dr

A
n

itra
 D

r

Drake W
ay

S
e

v
e

rn
 D

r

P
io

n
e
e
r 
D

r

Ala Tierra Vista Rd

Ember Dr

Mineral Flat Rd

W 3rd St

Everett Dr

B
ra

n
t 

S
t

Tholl Dr

Ormsby Ln

A
lto

 V
a

lle
y
 C

t

Village Pkwy

D
ry

d
e

n
 D

r

Mistletoe St

Desert W
ay

Rio Poco Rd

N
o

rt
h

g
a

te
 L

n

Welcome Way

American Flats Rd

Six Mile Canyon Rd

Como Rd

Beaumont Pkwy

E Parr Blvd

Sandhill Rd

D
ri
ve

w
a
y

L
y
m

b
e

ry
 S

t

E
d
is

o
n
 W

a
yH

o
lc

o
m

b
 A

v
e

Cactus Canyon Rd

E Robinson St

Canyon Rd
S
ky

 C
an

yo
n 

D
r

William Brent Rd

Silver Oak Dr

Fieldcreek Ln

Alaska St

Incline W
ay

Akard Dr

Rhodes Rd

W
a

rre
n

 W
a

y

S
a
lk R

d

Calcite Dr

P
a

rk
 L

n

Andrew Ln

G
re

y
 V

a
n

 R
d

Io
n

 D
r

F
o

re
s
t 

S
t

Serpentine Rd

Martin Ln

D
ir
t 
R

d

Butti Way

J
a

c
k
ra

b
b

it
 R

d

Placerville Dr

Wildrose Rd

P
a

h
 R

a
h
 D

r

Buckeye Rd

W
in

g
fie

ld
 H

ills R
d

Hells Bells Rd

Bel
m

ar
 D

r

Thumbs Up Rd

Im
us Rd

White Fir St

Summit Ridge Dr

P
ik

e
 S

t

A
le

xa
n
d
e
r 

W
a
y

S
 H

il ls
 D

r

Maestro Dr

H
o

c
k
b

e
rr

y
 R

d

John Henri Ct

W
ed

ge
 P

kw
y

P
in

io
n

 H
ill

s
 D

r

2nd St

Marsh Rd

Denio Dr

Sagittarius Dr

D
o

ri
 W

a
y

Madrid Dr

V
o

y
a

g
e

 D
r

River Vista Dr

Fargo W
ay

Dickerson Rd

O
a

k
 S

t

N
 R

o
o

p
 S

t

E I St

Henness Pass Rd

N
ico

le
 D

r

Del Monte Ln

R
e

b
e

l 
C

a
u

s
e

 R
d

P
re

y 
M

e
a
d
o
w

 R
d

E
 S

t

Mt Zion Rd

Bullion Rd

Arkansas St

G
o
ld

 C
a

n
y
o

n
 R

d

P
la

ta
 M

es
a 

D
r

Army Aviation Dr

H
ig

h
la

n
d
 R

d

Crain St

Pagni Ln

M
og

ul
 R

d

W
a
s
so

u
 R

d

W
e
s
t S

t

Citro
n St

Delia Dr

R
 S

t

Cory Dr

Globe Rd

Combination Rd

N
 T

im
b

e
rl in

e
 D

r

Bucks Way

N
orthridge A

ve

St Andrews Dr

E 1st Ave

Ives Ave

Vista Clara Ct

Sagehen Ln

La
ke

vi
ew

 R
d

Benedict Dr

Sky Tavern Rd

K
e

rn
ite

 S
t

W 6th St

J
a

s
p

e
r 

L
n

Carville Dr

Masters Dr

McClella
n D

r

Encanto C
t

Waltham W
ay

Great F
alls

 Loop

El Molino Dr

E
 A

rrow
creek P

kw
y

E
 H

id
d
e
n
 V

a
lle

y D
r

Talus Way

4t
h 

S
t

Rim Rock Dr

C
ro

s
s
o

v
e

r 
R

d

Lausanne Dr

Cash Dr

Ponderosa Ave

Edm
ands 

Dr

Staverville Rd

NO 284 C
ounty R

d

Hymer Ave

B
ra

v
o

 S
t

Filbert Rd

Aircenter Cir

W Arrowcreek Pkwy

Jean Way

W
 H

idden Valley D
r

Knob Hill Dr

E
lk

h
o

rn
 L

n

L
o

s
 A

rb
o

le
s
 L

n

Gault Way

Lotus St

Elmcrest Dr

C
in

d
y
s
 T

rl

O
ld

 V
irg

in
ia

 R
d

E Huffaker Ln

Putnam Dr

Sheep Camp Dr

Egyptian Dr

T
h

o
m

a
s
 C

re
e

k
 R

d

Britt Rd

Bare
back

 D
r

Stokes Dr

Lands End Dr

Adobe Dr

Mark Way

Flanders Rd

Goodwin R
d

Melody Ln

B
ig

h
o

rn
 D

r

Corso St

C
o
u
n
ty

 H
w

y-
2
9
4

E
a
g
le

 C
a
n
yo

n
 R

d

Eaton Rd

M
e
sa

 R
d

Gooseberry Dr

Apollo Dr

Riverdale Cir

Warrior Ln

N
F

D
 0

3
9

 R
d

C
ie

lo
 V

is
ta

 D
r

Atoma Rd

Gentry Way

H
w
y-28

Aja Pl

S
c
h

u
l z

 D
r

A
ffo

n
s
o

 D
r

L
ivery R

d

W 2nd Ave

Hawken Rd

B
ih

le
r 

R
d

R
u
d

d
y 

W
a

y

Outlaw Ln

Longspur Way

M
u

ld
o

o
n

 S
t

Tiro
l D

r

E
va

ns
 C

re
ek

 D
r

McCarran Ranch Rd

Raggio Park

Tiller Dr

O
ld

 O
p
h
ir
 R

d

B
o
rd

e
a
u
x D

r

T
e

le
g

r a
p

h
 S

t

Tunnel St

NO 271 County Rd

Alicia Way

Quail Valley Rd

Valley Wood Dr

H
o
m

e
ru

n
 D

r

Damon Rd

F
ro

n
ta

g
e
 R

d

Z
ir
co

n
 D

r

C
ap

ita
l B

lv
d

Golddust Dr

Back Nine Trl

P
rim

io
 W

a
y

S
ie

rr
a

 V
is

ta
 L

n

Clem
ens R

d

P
a

n
t h

e
r 

D
r

Turnberry
 D

r

Big River Dr

Old Ranch Rd

H
id

d
e

n
 C

re
e
k
 R

d

Sheep Dr

Haystack Dr

Panamint Rd

Ten Mile Dr

Macaw Ln

V
o

lta
ire

 S
t

F
u

g
g

le
s
 D

r

In
cl

in
e
 L

a
k
e
 R

d

N Sunridge Dr

County Hwy-159

Partei Rd

E Laramie Dr

Jefferson Dr

Waterford Pl

Mid Rd

Perro Ln

Cemetery Rd

S
ilv

e
r  

H
o

rs
e

 R
d

Graves Rd

S Saddlehorn Dr

S
to

ve
p
ip

e
 R

d

E Queen Way

Magnolia Way

Cham
ey Ext

Y
o
rk

sh
ire

 D
r

Rock Haven Dr

R
io

 V
is

ta
 L

n

Iron Wood

P
h
oe

ni
x 

R
d

Nugget Ave

Grand Canyon Blvd

B
o

y
le

 S
t

Cobalt L
n

Park Pl

Gordon St

Owens Rd

Glendale Ave

Wrangler Rd

Aquamarine Dr

E Gault Way

P
a
la

ce
 D

r

Horizon View Ave

C
h

a
n

tr
y
 F

la
ts

 R
d

Aswan St

R
o
ck

w
e
ll 

B
lv

d

Lindsay Ln

Lake
vie

w D
r

Davis Ln

Lovitt Ln
D

a
vi

d
 A

lle
n

 P
k
w

y

O
h
m

 P
l

Colt Dr

Jacmel Dr

F
o

rtu
n
e

 D
r

D
o
rc

e
y 

D
r

Bellhaven Rd

Chance Ln

C
h

ip
m

u
n

k
 D

r

Joy Ln

Anniversary Rd

E 7th St

M
ar

bl
e 

P
oi

nt
 R

d

Decoy Dr

G
a

lle
r i

a
 P

k
w

y

E Surge St

C
o

n
v
a
ir D

r

Saint James Pkwy

Bennington C
t

Fox Trail Dr

M
a

ry
 L

n

Vermillion Rd

Industry Cir

C
u
lp

e
p
p
e
r 

D
r

NO 340 County Rd

H
em

lock W
ay

G
re

e
n

 M
o

u
n

ta
in

 S
t

Kenneth Dr

E
d

it
h

 L
n

H
o

p
e

 L
n

Kresge Ln

Trail Rider Dr

College Dr

Stagg Ln

Silver King D
r

Palmer Dr

Minor Ln

Firenze Dr

Sienna Park Dr

S
p
a
ce

 Te
st R

d

Rampion Way

Maggie Ln

Joyce Ln

Is
p

a
s
te

r 
R

d

17th St

Gallup Rd

Adair Dr

S
a
n
 M

a
rin

o

Barron Way

NO 97 County Rd

Valle de Sol Blvd

Achilles Dr

Lo
m

bar
di

 R
d

Onyo W
ay

Galena Canyon Trl

PPF Way

Pyrite Dr

D
e

l W
e
b

b
 P

k
w

y
 W

Broken Spur Line

Regal D
r

Turner Ct

S
ie

rr
a 

M
an

or
 D

r

Gordonia Dr

Mueska Ct

G
o
ld

 R
a
n
ch

 R
d

A
p
o
llo

 W
a
y

G
a

rn
e

t 
W

a
y

NO 281 County Rd

Alpha Butte Rd

NO 321 County Rd

Sage Canyon Rd

Quinn Dr

Temple Hill Rd

Lepori Way
M

o
rm

o
n
 T

e
a

 W
a
y

Blue Spruce Rd

T
a
g

o
r 

D
r

G
raves Dr

R
e

d
m

o
n

d
 D

r

R
a
vin

e
 C

t

Moonstone Ln

Frisco Way

Sierra Rose Dr

Catalpa Ln

M
a
rt
h
ia

m
 A

ve

Daybreak Dr

Lace
rta

 D
r

Philoree Ln

A
lli
so

n 
D

r

S
o
u
th

w
in

d
 D

r

V
ic

to
ri
a
 R

d

E
n
te

rp
rise

 W
a
y

Amarg
osa

 D
r

B
u

ll 
R

d

Aspen Creek Ct

Skinner Dr

S
a
lo

m
o
n

 C
ir

Bowie Rd

Ellis St

Open Space Trails

Flume Rd

Bullion Hill Rd

R
iver F

low
 D

r

Lake St

Astro Dr

P
V

 F
a

rm
s
 R

d

P
a

s
s
a

 T
e

m
p

o
 D

r

C
o

p
p

e
rf

ie
ld

 D
r

Little Ln

B
elsera C

t

Partridge Ln

K
eystone C

ir

Larkin Cir

Sun Mesa Dr

P
a
rkw

a
y
 D

r

M
a

rra
c
c
o

 D
r

Winery Dr

Long Meadow Dr

Avian Dr

P
a

rla
n

ti  L
n

Morro Ave

Roano
ke

 T
rl

A
rb

or
 L

n

Cabrillo Ln

Valley Dr

Stillwater Dr

Golf Club Dr

Moraine Way

Firt
re

e L
n

Sunridge Dr

Kumle Ln

Red C
orra

l T
rl

Rough Rock Dr

Argonaught C
t

Shawna Ln

E
uskera C

t

Anchorage Dr

Deerfie
ld Rd

W
ild

h
o

rse
 R

d

A
b

ie
s
 R

d

Hillcrest Dr

N
o
rt

h
ru

p
 D

r

Tim
aru

 T
rl

E
lk

cr
ee

k 
T
rl

Sells St

H
olly C

a
nyo

n R
d

Upton Way

Corbett Way

Le
m

on
 R

d

B
lo

ck
a
d
e
 D

r

Jo
sh

ua
 D

r

C
o

a
c
h

 C
t

W
ill

e
y
 L

n

Pile
us R

d

Camellia Dr

Hagar Rd

S
um

m
it 

S
t

Graham Ln

3rd C
rk

C
h

e
ry

l 
L

n

Hobbyhorse Ln

Peach Ct

NFD 49 Rd

E
l 
C

a
b

a
llo

 T
rl

R
id

ge
 F

ie
ld

 T
rl

W Winnie Ln

Calle Myriam

Rampart Ter

Heritage Way

Evan St

Dutch Flat Rd

N
ib

lic
k 

D
r

Chaparral Dr

1
4

th
 S

t

S
o
m

e
rs D

r

Garson Rd

W 8th St

Unn
am

ed
 S

tre
et

Unnamed Street

R
am

p

Ramp

U
nnam

ed S
treet

4WD Road

C St

4WD Road

Unnamed Street

Ramp

US-395

D
rivew

ay

R
a

m
p

Unnamed S
tre

et

Unnamed S
tre

et

Appian Way

Ramp

4W
D
 R

oa
d

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

4WD Road

Unnamed Street

R
a
m

p

Ramp

I St

R
a
m

p

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

Ramp

R
a
m

p

D
ri v

e
w

a
y

R
a
m

p

4WD Road

U
n
n
a

m
e
d

 S
tre

e
t

Unnamed Street

Calle de la Plata

Unnamed Street

E 5th St

U
n

n
a

m
e

d
 S

t r
e

e
t

R
am

p

4WD Road

Ramp

Ramp

Ramp

U
n

n
a

m
e

d
 S

tr
e

e
t

Ramp

4WD Road

S
 M

cC
a
rr

a
n
 B

lv
d

4W
D R

oad

D
ri

v
e

w
a

y

4W
D Road

4
W

D
 R

o
a
d

4W
D R

oa
d

R
a
m

p

4
W

D
 R

o
a
d

Ramp

4WD Road

Ramp

4
W

D
 R

o
ad

Unnamed Street

N
V
-3

4
1

4
W

D
 R

o
a

d

Driveway

4WD Road

R
e
d
 R

o
ck

 R
d

D
rivew

ay

Ramp

Ram
p

Unnamed Street

R
am

p

R
am

p

Tanks Rd

4
W

D
 R

o
a

d

N
F

D
 0

4
1

 R
d

Unnamed Street

NV-341

U
n

n
a

m
e

d
 S

tr
e

e
t

R
a
m

p

D
rivew

ay

4W
D Road

D St

Ramp

U
nn

am
ed

 S
tre

et

Unnamed Street

Lear Blvd

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

U
n
n

a
m

e
d

 S
tr

e
e

t

4WD Road

4WD Road

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

4WD Road

4W
D

 R
oa

d

Unnamed Street

4WD Road

4
W

D
 R

o
a

d

Unnam
ed S

tre
et

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

4
W

D
 R

o
a
d Unnamed Street

U
n
n
a
m

e
d
 S

tr
e
e
t

4WD Road

4W
D R

oad

R
a
m

p

Ramp

Unnamed Street

Dirt 
Rd

Ramp

Ramp

Ramp

4
W

D
 R

o
ad

4W
D

 R
oa

d

Ram
p

U
n
n

a
m

e
d

 S
tr

e
e

t

NFD 039 Rd

U
n
n
a
m

e
d
 S

tre
e
t

4WD Road

U
nn

am
ed S

tre
et

Unnamed Street

Unnamed Street

U
n

n
a

m
e

d
 S

tre
e
t

4W
D R

oad

4WD Road

Eag
le

 C
an

yo
n 

D
r

4
W

D
 R

o
a
d

4WD Road

Ramp

Legend

REMSA_Zone_A

REMSA_Zone_B

REMSA_Zone_C

REMSA_Zone_D

REMSA_Zone_E_Frontier

CAD_Streets

County Lines



N US 395

STATE ROUTE 28

S US 395

US 395A

W INTERSTATE 80

NORTHLAKE
BLVD

PY
RA

MI
D W

AY

STATE ROUTE 431

ST
AT

E R
OU

TE
 28

E INTERSTATE 80

3RD ST

US 40

US 395A

US 395A

STATE
ROUTE

341

S US 395TAHOE BLVD

INTE
RSTA

TE
 58

0

STATE ROUTE 341

S MC CARRAN BLVD

N MC CARRAN BLVD

S M
C 

CA
RR

AN
 B

LV
D

WHITE LAKE

SILVER LAKE

VIRGINIA LAKE

WASHOE LAKE

LAKE TAHOE

MARLETTE LAKE

3

Miles

Zone A

Zone B

Zone C

Zone D

Zone E



ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AHS Office: 775-328-2410   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD__NA_______ 
DHO__________ 
DA__NA_______ 
Risk_NA_______ 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: January 28, 2016 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 
328-2417, aheenan@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for December, 
Fiscal Year 2016 

SUMMARY 

The six months of fiscal year 2016 (FY16) ended with a cash balance of $1,407,561.  Total revenues 
were $9,340,596 which was 47.5% of budget and an increase of $851,694 compared to fiscal year 2015 
(FY15).  With 50.0% of the fiscal year completed 46.2% of the expenditures have been spent for a total 
of $9,837,477 up $160,603 compared to FY15 mainly due to negotiated increases in salaries and 
benefits 

District Health Strategic Objective supported:  Secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 

Fiscal Year 2016 Budget was adopted May 18, 2015. 

BACKGROUND 

Review of Cash 

The available cash at the end of 
the sixth month of FY16 was 
$1,407,561 which was 79.5% of 
the average budgeted monthly 
cash outflow of $1,769,707 for the 
fiscal year.  The encumbrances 
and other liability portion of the 
cash balance totals $796,653 
leaving $610,908 available for 
future obligations.  The County 
support is the single largest source 
of cash and continues to come in 
each month at 1/12 of the budget 
or $839,738. 

Note: December FY13 negative cash is due to 50%, $1.3million, of the County Overhead being 
charged in December with just 8.3%, $719,000, of the County Support being transferred to the 
fund. January FY15 no County General Fund support was transferred to the Health Fund leading 
to a negative cash situation

 $(1,000,000)
 $(500,000)

 $-
 $500,000

 $1,000,000
 $1,500,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,500,000
 $3,000,000
 $3,500,000
 $4,000,000

Beg Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Trend of Available Cash at Month End

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.

mailto:aheenan@washoecounty.us


Date: DBOH meeting January 28, 2016 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2016, December Financial Review 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Review of Revenues (including transfers from General fund) and Expenditures by category 

  
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Total year to date revenues of $9,340,596 
were up $851,694 which was up 10.0% from 
the same time last fiscal year and was 47.5% 
of budget.    The main source of the increase 
is from the County General Fund support, 
excluding that source of revenue the fund 
was 2.0% up from last year. The revenue 
categories that were up over last fiscal year 
are as follows:  licenses and permits by 
$45,603 or 6.9%; charges for services by 
$187,894, 30.7%; fines and forfeitures 
received $500; miscellaneous revenue up 
$6,679, 34.9%; tire and pollution control 
funding was up $70,656 or 11.7%; and, the 
County General Fund transfer was up 
$766,682 for year to date December FY16.  
Federal and state grant revenues are down 
$226,319 compared to the prior year. 

 
 
 
 
The total year to date expenditures of 
$9,837,477 increased by $160,603 or 
1.7% compared to the same time frame 
for last fiscal year 2015.  Salaries and 
benefits expenditures for the six 
months were $7,281,355 up $108,635, 
1.5%, over the prior year.  Services 
and supplies expenditures of 
$2,488,046 were down $8,146.  The 
total capital expenditures of $9,995 
were up $2,034 or 25.5% over last 
fiscal year.  
 
 
 

 

 

 $-
 $1,000,000
 $2,000,000
 $3,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $5,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $7,000,000
 $8,000,000
 $9,000,000

Revenues
FY16 December Year to Date

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $20,000,000

FY 12
Actual

FY 13
Actual

FY 14
Actual

FY 15
Actual

FY 16
Budget

 FY16
Dec Year
to Date

Revenues 
(including General Fund support)

GF Operating Support Grants
GF Overhead Subsidy Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits Tires & Pollution Control
Miscellaneous

 $-
 $1,000,000
 $2,000,000
 $3,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $5,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $7,000,000
 $8,000,000
 $9,000,000

 $10,000,000

Expenditures
FY16 December Year to Date

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $20,000,000
 $22,000,000

FY 12
Actual

FY 13
Actual

FY 14
Actual

FY 15
Actual

FY 16
Budget

 FY16
Dec Year
to Date

Expenditures

Salaries & Wages Benefits
County Overhead Misc. Services & Supplies
Professional Services Chemical Supplies
Biologicals Capital



Date: DBOH meeting January 28, 2016 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2016, December Financial Review 
Page 3 of 4 

Review of Revenues and Expenditures by Division 
The County General Fund support is the single largest source of revenue for the six months at 
$5,038,428 and 50.0% of budget.  AQM has received the largest percent of revenue compared to budget 
of 53.8% or $1,213,949 but down $61,203 in funding compared to FY15.  CCHS received $1,348,716 in 
revenue or 37.4% of budget and down $71,245 over FY15.  EHS has received $960,339 which is 48.7% 
of budget and up $83,722 over FY15.  EPHP has received $779,052 in revenue and is up $133,668 or 
20.7% over last year due to additional grant funding and an increase in birth and death certificates. 

With 50.0% of the fiscal year completed the total expenditures were $9,837,477 which is 46.2% of 
budget and up $160,603 over last fiscal year.  ODHO spent $272,502 and is up 7.7% over FY15 due to 
filling a position that was vacant in FY15.  AHS has spent $504,186 or 49.4% of budget and is 13.3% 
down over last year due to a prior year employee retirement payout of accrued benefits.  AQM spent 
$1,292,236 of the division budget and has increased $55,121, 4.5% over last fiscal year.  CCHS has 
spent $3,430,031 year to date and is down $40,300 over last year.  EHS spent $3,134,125 and has 
increased $101,060 or 3.3% over last year.  EPHP expenditures were $1,204,397 and were $102,281 or 
9.3% over FY15. 

2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014

 Actual Year 
End 

(unaudited) 
 December               

Year to Date 
 Adjusted 

Budget 
 December               

Year to Date 
 Percent of 

Budget 

 FY16 
Increase 

over FY15 
Revenues (all sources of funds)

ODHO -              -              -              -              -               -              -               - -
AHS 8 33,453         87,930         151              41 -              111              - 170.3%
AQM 1,966,492     2,068,697     2,491,036     2,427,471     1,275,152     2,255,504     1,213,949     53.8% -4.8%
CCHS 3,706,478     3,322,667     3,388,099     3,520,945     1,419,960     3,610,928     1,348,716     37.4% -5.0%
EHS 1,755,042     1,828,482     1,890,192     2,008,299     876,617       1,972,876     960,339       48.7% 9.6%
EPHP 1,670,338     1,833,643     1,805,986     1,555,508     645,385       1,729,897     779,052       45.0% 20.7%
GF support 7,250,850     8,623,891     8,603,891     10,000,192   4,271,746     10,076,856   5,038,428     50.0% 17.9%
Total Revenues 16,349,208$ 17,710,834$ 18,267,134$ 19,512,566$ 8,488,902$   19,646,061$ 9,340,596$   47.5% 10.0%

Expenditures
ODHO -              -              -              481,886       253,030       515,468       272,502       52.9% 7.7%
AHS 1,202,330     1,366,542     1,336,740     1,096,568     581,218       1,021,350     504,186       49.4% -13.3%
AQM 1,955,798     2,629,380     2,524,702     2,587,196     1,237,115     3,223,296     1,292,236     40.1% 4.5%
CCHS 6,086,866     6,765,200     6,949,068     6,967,501     3,470,331     7,372,877     3,430,031     46.5% -1.2%
EHS 4,848,375     5,614,688     5,737,872     5,954,567     3,033,064     6,539,945     3,134,125     47.9% 3.3%
EPHP 2,084,830     2,439,602     2,374,417     2,312,142     1,102,116     2,621,636     1,204,397     45.9% 9.3%
Total Expenditures 16,178,200$ 18,815,411$ 18,922,800$ 19,399,860$ 9,676,874$   21,294,570$ 9,837,477$   46.2% 1.7%

Revenues (sources of funds) less Expenditures:
ODHO -              -              -              (481,886)      (253,030)      (515,468)      (272,502)      
AHS (1,202,322)   (1,333,088)   (1,248,810)   (1,096,417)   (581,177)      (1,021,350)   (504,075)      
AQM 10,694         (560,683)      (33,666)        (159,725)      38,037         (967,792)      (78,287)        
CCHS (2,380,389)   (3,442,533)   (3,560,969)   (3,446,555)   (2,050,371)   (3,761,949)   (2,081,315)   
EHS (3,093,333)   (3,786,206)   (3,847,680)   (3,946,268)   (2,156,447)   (4,567,069)   (2,173,786)   
EPHP (414,492)      (605,958)      (568,431)      (756,634)      (456,732)      (891,739)      (425,344)      
GF Operating 7,250,850     8,623,891     8,603,891     10,000,192   4,271,746     10,076,856   5,038,428     
Surplus (deficit) 171,008$     (1,104,577)$  (655,666)$    112,707$     (1,187,972)$  (1,648,509)$  (496,881)$    

Fund Balance (FB) 3,916,042$   2,811,465$   2,155,799$   2,268,506$   619,997$     
FB as a % of Expenditures 24.2% 14.9% 11.4% 11.7% 2.9%
Note: ODHO=Office of the District Health Officer, AHS=Administrative Health Services, AQM=Air Quality Management,  CCHS=Community and Clinical Health Services, 
EHS=Environmental Health Services, EPHP=Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, GF=County General Fund

Fiscal Year 2015/2016

Washoe County Health District
Summary of Revenues and Expenditures

Fiscal Year 2011/2012 through December Year to Date Fiscal Year 2015/2016 (FY16)
Actual Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 2014/2015



Date: DBOH meeting January 28, 2016 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2016, December Financial Review 
Page 4 of 4 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact associated with the acknowledgement of this staff report. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund 
Financial Review for December, Fiscal Year 2016. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Move to acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for December, Fiscal Year 
2016. 

Attachment: 
Health District Fund financial system summary report 











OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
ODHO Phone: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  January 28, 2016 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Sara Dinga, Community Health Improvement Plan 
(775) 328-2401, sdinga@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Discussion and possible approval of the Washoe County Community Health 
Improvement Plan, 2016-2018  

SUMMARY 
A final draft of the Washoe County Community Health Improvement Plan, 2016-2018 has been 
completed for District Board of Health consideration and approval. 

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item: Demonstrate the value and 
contribution of public health, Strengthen District-wide infrastructure to improve public health, 
Strengthen WCHD as an innovative, high- performing organization and Achieve targeted 
improvements in health outcomes and health equity. 

Fundamental Review recommendation supported by this item: a) Perform cost analysis of all 
programs (Fundamental Review states: Resource commitment should ultimately reflect priorities in 
the WCHD’s strategic plan and in the Community Health Improvement Plan, demonstrating 
organizational alignment); b) Develop metrics for organizational success and improved community 
health; and c) Undertake an organizational strategic plan to set forth key health department goals and 
objectives so that priorities are clearly articulated for the DBOH, WCHD staff, stakeholders, and the 
community.  The Community Health Improvement Plan is also part of the Accreditation Readiness 
Review included within the Fundamental Review.  

PREVIOUS ACTION 
Approval of the Fundamental Review recommendations implementation plan, to include Community 
Health Improvement Plan activities occurred in March 2014, following the February 2014 
Fundamental Review Report.  A summary of those recommendations are included directly below 
under “Background.” 

BACKGROUND 
The purpose of the Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) is to describe how the Health 
District and the community will work together to improve the health of the population that it 
serves. The CHIP is based on the findings of the Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) 
and is a community driven process that has culminated in a set of agreed upon priorities that will 
be a focus for community improvement. 

DHO__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



Subject: Community Health Improvement Plan 
Date: 01.28.16 
Page 2 of 3 

In May 2015, the CHIP Steering Committee met for the first time to begin the process of 
providing recommendations to the Health District for development of the CHIP.  The CHIP 
Steering Committee continued to meet over a period of eight months to work through the 
following CHIP development processes: 

• Review and analysis of quantitative and qualitative CHNA data.  The Health District
provided a summary of this data to the CHIP Steering Committee through the creation of 
infographics and PowerPoint presentations. 

• The CHIP Steering Committee prioritized the health issues within the CHNA over a
period of two months.  The CHIP Steering Committee first narrowed the health topic
areas within the CHNA through a process called Dotmocracy.  At the completion of this
process, eight priority health issues were identified for Washoe County, to include:

o Access to Healthcare and Social Services
o Alcohol and Drugs
o Built Environment
o Education
o Food Security
o Income/Poverty
o Mental Health
o Obesity/Physical Activity and Overweight

In an effort to further narrow these priorities, the CHIP Steering Committee then utilized 
a process called Grid Analysis in which each priority is analyzed further and scored based 
on the following:  

o Importance to community members
o Opportunity/available assets
o Severity of the problem
o Number of people affected
o How much the data suggests a need to improve

Based on the data and discussion from the Grid Analysis process, the CHIP Steering 
Committee selected the following four health priorities for the Washoe County CHIP: 

o Access to Healthcare and Social Services
o Behavioral Health (combining both Mental Health and Alcohol and Drugs)
o Education (K-12)
o Food Security

• The next step in the process was to validate these four health priorities with community
members and community partners.  These priorities were validated through 99
community member interviews and/or surveys, 34 community partner surveys, and 20
key informant interviews.

• Finally, these priorities were further validated during nine community workgroups in
which community partners came together to discuss the priorities and begin development
of action plans for the CHIP.



Subject: Community Health Improvement Plan 
Date: 01.28.16 
Page 3 of 3 

The Community Health Improvement Plan is a prerequisite for accreditation under the standards 
of the Public Health Accreditation Board. 

The continued participation of the various organizations identified in the CHIP will be essential to 
successful implementation of the plan and making progress in addressing the priorities.  Much of the 
work to be accomplished must be performed by these organizations.  The Health District will seek to 
play a role to continue the engagement of these organizations working collaboratively on the plan, and 
to track and evaluate progress in meeting the plan’s goals and objectives.   

The CHIP Executive Summary has been included with this report for your review.  The full 
Community Health Improvement Plan can be found at 
https://www.washoecounty.us/health/files/data-publications-reports/CHIP%20-
%20DRAFT%20FOR%20BOH%2001.19.16.pdf.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no additional fiscal impact to the FY16 budget should the Board approve the Community 
Health Improvement Plan.  However, in order to support the successful implementation of the plan the 
Health District may need to dedicate additional staff resources for the plan implementation.  This may 
be addressed in subsequent years budgeting processes. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Recommend the Board of Health approve the Washoe County Community Health Improvement Plan, 
2016-2018. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
I move to approve the Washoe County Community Health Improvement Plan, 2016-2018. 

https://www.washoecounty.us/health/files/data-publications-reports/CHIP%20-%20DRAFT%20FOR%20BOH%2001.19.16.pdf
https://www.washoecounty.us/health/files/data-publications-reports/CHIP%20-%20DRAFT%20FOR%20BOH%2001.19.16.pdf


Washoe County Community Health Improvement Plan Executive Summary ● 2016-2018 - DRAFT Page 1 



Washoe County Community Health Improvement Plan Executive Summary ● 2016-2018 - DRAFT Page 2 
 

 

 

Executive Summary 
 

 

 In coordination with community members and community partners, the Washoe County 

Health District developed the Washoe County Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) to 

address local health issues that are contributing to or causing poor health in Washoe County.  

The CHIP is a living document that will be updated annually as new information, needs, gaps, 

resources, and emergent issues are identified.   

  

For purposes of the CHIP, four priority health issues were selected for Washoe County:   

 

 Access to 
Healthcare and 
Social Services 

 
Behavioral  

Health 
 

Education  
(K-12) 

 
Food  

Security 

  
 
More than 200 community members and community partners participated in the selection 
and validation of the above listed priorities.  For a detailed description of the processes 
utilized to select these four health priorities, please refer to Appendix Two. 

  
 After selection of the four priority health issues, action plans for each health priority were 

developed, and are included within the CHIP.  The goals, objectives, strategies, timelines, and 

lead organizations included within each action plan were determined based on information 

collected from 99 community member interviews, 34 community partner surveys, 20 key 

informant interviews, and nine community workgroups. 

 

Implementation of each of the action plans will occur through workgroups and workgroup 

subcommittees who will meet on a regular basis beginning in early 2016.  The CHIP Steering 

Committee and the Washoe County Health District encourage participation from all Washoe 

County organizations addressing the four health priorities.  Please send an e-mail to 

Health_GeneralContactUs@washoecounty.us if you wish to become involved in one or more 

of the CHIP workgroups. 

 

A summary of the goals and objectives within the CHIP action plans are included within the 

table on the following pages.  The objectives included within the table are abbreviated for the 

Executive Summary, and the complete SMART objectives are included within the CHIP action 

plans. 

mailto:Health_GeneralContactUs@washoecounty.us


Washoe County Community Health Improvement Plan Executive Summary ● 2016-2018 - DRAFT Page 3 
 

 Summary of Washoe County CHIP Goals and Objectives: 
 

Priority One: Access to Healthcare and Social Services 

Goals Objectives 

1 
Improve access to healthcare and social services for 
individuals on Medicaid and Medicare, and for those 
who are underinsured or uninsured. 

1.1 
Provide Family Health Festivals to at-risk communities in Washoe County. 

1.2 
Develop a Family Health Festival Strategic Plan. 

1.3 
Increase the percentage of Washoe County residents who have a usual 
primary care provider. 

1.4 
Increase the number of non-high school graduate adults who receive their 
Adult High School Diploma. 

1.5 
There will be zero (0) ADA paratransit trip refusals in Washoe County within 
the Reno Transportation Commission paratransit service area. 

1.6 
There will be zero (0) ADA paratransit trip refusals in Washoe County 
outside of the Reno Transportation Commission paratransit service area. 

1.7 
Increase the number of trips provided by private/not-for-profit 
organizations for seniors, disabled, and low income residents for medical 
and social service needs. 

1.8 
Increase the number of reduced-rate or other discounted transit trips 
provided for seniors, disabled, and low income residents in Washoe County 
(taxi bucks, RTC ACCCESS coupons, etc.). 

2 
Improve coordination of care in Washoe County 
across healthcare settings, social services, individual 
providers, and the community. 

2.1 
Develop a strategic plan to restructure and improve Nevada 2-1-1. 

2.2 
Explore models for engagement of assistance providers in underserved 
communities. 

Priority Two: Behavioral Health 

Goals Objectives 

3 
Improve access to behavioral health services for 
individuals on Medicaid and Medicare, and for those 
who are underinsured or uninsured. 

3.1 
Increase the proportion of adults aged 18 years and older with serious 
mental illness who receive treatment. 
 

3.2 
Increase the proportion of adults aged 18 years and older with major 
depressive episodes who receive treatment. 

3.3 
Increase the proportion of persons with co-occurring substance abuse and 
mental disorders who receive treatment for both disorders. 



Washoe County Community Health Improvement Plan Executive Summary ● 2016-2018 - DRAFT Page 4 
 

Priority Two: Behavioral Health (continued) 

Goals Objectives 

4 
Create a healthier environment for Washoe County 
youth. 

4.1 
Decrease the number of K-12 bullying incidents within the Washoe County 
School District. 

4.1.a 
 Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students 
 who are bullied on school property. 

4.1.b 
  Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students 
  who are electronically bullied. 

4.2 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who miss 
school because they feel unsafe at school or on their way to or from school. 

4.3 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who feel 
sad or hopeless. 

4.4 
Decrease the percentage of high school students who seriously consider 
attempting suicide. 

4.5 Decrease the percentage of high school students attempting suicide. 

5 
Protect the health and safety of Washoe County 
youth through the reduction of substance use and 
abuse. 

5.1 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who 
currently drink alcohol. 

5.2 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who 
recently participated in binge drinking. 

5.3 
Decrease the percentage of high school students who drank alcohol for the 
first time before age 13 years. 

5.4 
Decrease the percentage of University of Nevada, Reno students who 
currently drink alcohol. 

5.5 
Decrease the percentage of University of Nevada, Reno students who 
recently participated in binge drinking. 

5.6 
Decrease the average number of drinks consumed by University of Nevada, 
Reno students on last drinking occasion. 

5.7 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who ever 
used marijuana.  

5.8 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who tried 
marijuana for the first time before age 13 years. 

5.9 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who 
currently use marijuana. 

 



Washoe County Community Health Improvement Plan Executive Summary ● 2016-2018 - DRAFT Page 5 
 

Priority Two: Behavioral Health (continued) 

Goals Objectives 

5 
 

Protect the health and safety of Washoe County 
youth through the reduction of substance use and 

abuse. 

5.10 
Decrease the percentage of University of Nevada, Reno students who 
currently use marijuana. 

5.11 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who ever 
used methamphetamines.  

5.12 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who ever 
used cocaine.  

5.13 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who ever 
used inhalants.  

5.14 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who ever 
used heroin.  

5.15 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who ever 
used ecstasy.  

5.16 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who ever 
took prescription drugs without a doctor’s prescription. 

5.17 
Decrease the percentage of University of Nevada, Reno students who ever 
took prescription painkillers without a doctor’s prescription. 

5.18 
Decrease the percentage of University of Nevada, Reno students who ever 
took prescription sedatives without a doctor’s prescription. 

5.19 
Decrease the percentage of University of Nevada, Reno students who ever 
took prescription stimulants without a doctor’s prescription. 

5.20 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who were 
offered, sold, or given an illegal drug by someone on school property. 

5.21 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who 
drove a vehicle when they had been drinking alcohol. 

5.22 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County high school students who rode 
in a vehicle by someone who had been drinking alcohol. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Washoe County Community Health Improvement Plan Executive Summary ● 2016-2018 - DRAFT Page 6 
 

Priotiy Three: Education (K-12) 

Goals Objectives 

6 
Improve health outcomes of Washoe County youth 
through educational attainment. 

6.1 Increase the Washoe County School District graduation rate. 

6.1.a-
6.1.c 

 Increase the Washoe County School District graduation rate for 
 black/African American, Hispanic/Latino, and Native 
 American/American Indian students. 

6.1.d-
6.1.f 

 Increase the Washoe County School District graduation rate for 
 Children in Transition, children  living in poverty, and for students 
 enrolled in Special Education classes. 

6.2 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County School District graduates 
attending Truckee Meadows Community College who require remedial 
math courses. 

6.3 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County School District graduates 
attending Truckee Meadows Community College who require remedial 
English courses. 

6.4 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County School District graduates 
attending the University of Nevada, Reno who require remedial math 
courses. 

6.5 
Decrease the percentage of Washoe County School District graduates 
attending the University of Nevada, Reno who require remedial English 
courses. 

7 
Support student health, wellness and achievement 
through nutritious eating habits and physical 
activity. 

7.1 
The Washoe County School District will adopt a Student Wellness Policy 
that meets state and federal requirements for nutrition and physical 
activity. 

7.2 
Increase the percentage of Title 1 schools with Provision 2 or Community 
Eligibility status. 

7.3 Increase the number of Title I schools with Girls on the Run programming. 

7.3.a 
 Provide the Girls on the Run program to 500 adolescent girls in 
 Washoe County. 

7.4 
Pilot the University of Nevada, Reno’s Coaches Challenge program in at 
least 20 elementary school classrooms within Washoe County. 

7.4.a-
7.4.b 

 Washoe County elementary students who complete Coaches 
 Challenge will report an increase in physical activity and 
 nutritious eating. 



Washoe County Community Health Improvement Plan Executive Summary ● 2016-2018 - DRAFT Page 7 
 

Priority Four: Food Security 

Goals  Objectives 

8 
Implement programs that address the immediate 
need for food and promote long-term health and 
food security in households and communities. 

8.1 

Conduct a community needs assessment in the 89502 zip code with the 
goal of better understanding the role of food banks and their partners in 
a structured approach to achieve community-based outcomes that 
improve family stability. 

8.2 

Design a plan for improving outcomes identified through the community 
needs assessment process (identified in Objective 8.1), including the 
identification of interventions that draw from the best available evidence 
base. 

8.3 
Design an evaluation and data collection plan for those interventions 
identified in Objective 8.2. 

8.4 
Implement interventions identified in Objective 8.2 and assess outcomes 
utilizing the evaluation plan in Objective 8.3. 

8.5 
Develop a Washoe County Community Garden Plan to identify goals, 
objectives and strategies for Community Gardens in low-income 
neighborhoods. 

9 
Enhance home-delivered meal programs to seniors 
to keep on pace with the rising senior population. 

9.1 
Reduce the gap in the number of meals served to seniors residing in 
Washoe County. 

 

 
 
 
 
 



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 28, 2016 

DATE: January 15, 2016 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director 
775-784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Program Update, Divisional Update, Program Reports 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Program Update

a. AQM Preparation for the Revised Ozone Standard

In response to the revised National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS) for ozone, AQM 
staff has been exploring the options available to reduce the emissions of ozone precursors, 
which include volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and oxides of nitrogen (NOx).  As a 
refresher, EPA strengthened the ozone standard to 70 parts per billion (ppb) from the previous 
standard of 75 ppb which was established in 2008.  The most recent three years of ozone 
monitoring data (2013 – 2015) indicates the design value for Washoe County is 71 ppb which 
is considered to be in non-attainment under the new standard.  By October, 2016, AQM staff 
will be required to develop an attainment status recommendation for submittal by the Air 
Quality Management Division, through the State of Nevada, to EPA Region IX for 
consideration.  This all means 2016 is our year to focus our maximum efforts towards our 
mission to Keep it Clean.    

Based on a recommendation from EPA Region IX staff, AQM staff has been researching the 
opportunities provided in the U.S. EPA Ozone Advance Program.  This program promotes a 
collaborative effort between EPA and local agencies to proactively reduce ozone precursors in 
attainment areas to continue to maintain the existing standards and help to meet the new 
standards.  The program provides a flexible framework that allows for participants to 
determine their own goals and the measures they want to implement in order to be successful. 
The program does not guarantee participation will prevent a non-attainment designation but 
credit is available for the actions taken as part of the Advance Program in the event a non-
attainment designation does occur.   

DD__________ 
DHO_________ 

CA
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.A.

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjP-OCznpvKAhUCKGMKHfC5Ai4QjRwIBw&url=http://epa.gov/ozoneadvance/&psig=AFQjCNHvxT-pckO0qTXp6OAUmQmJGSMCGw&ust=1452377620153137


Date:  January 15, 2016 
Subject:  AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 

The Ozone Advance Program not only provides for, but encourages, local voluntary measures 
to reduce air pollution before pursuing reductions that will become regulatory mandates.  The 
proactive efforts should produce positive outcomes by further improving air quality to ensure 
continued health protection; provide needed reductions that could result in a lower non-
attainment classification and feed into future State Implementation Plans; and reductions 
targeting ozone often result in multi-pollutant co-benefits like reducing PM2.5 (particulate 
matter less than 2.5 microns in diameter). 
 
Recognizing the challenges involved with implementing voluntary programs, the Ozone 
Advance Program encourages the establishment of stakeholder groups.  As a first step towards 
this goal, a meeting has been scheduled for January 27th to introduce an anti-idling campaign 
and explore the opportunities available in the community.  The following organizations have 
confirmed their participation in the meeting: 
 

• The Associated General Contractors (hosting the meeting) 
• The Chamber 
• Rocky Mountain Fleet Managers Association 
• The Builders Association of Northern Nevada 
• The Retail Association of Nevada 

 
The new campaign will be developed in order to reach out to everyone in our community to 
change behaviors that will reduce idling and contribute to a healthy community.  The goal is 
to have the campaign ready to be distributed prior to the 2016 ozone season. 
 
The commitment to the Ozone Advance Program will require additional actions by AQM staff 
through the submittal of program eligibility criteria including ozone monitoring data to 
confirm Washoe County is in attainment with the 2008 ozone standard and existing emission 
inventory data.  Additional information on the Ozone Advance Program will be presented at a 
future District Board of Health regularly scheduled meeting.  
  

 
 

 
Charlene Albee, Director 
Air Quality Management Division 
  



Date:  January 15, 2016 
Subject:  AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

2. Divisional Update   
 

a. Below are two charts detailing the latest air quality information for the month of 
December.  The top chart indicates the highest AQI by pollutant and includes the highest 
AQI from the previous three years in the data table for comparison.  The bottom chart 
indicates the number of days by AQI category and includes the previous year to date for 
comparison. 
 

 
 

 
 

Please note AQI data are not fully verified and validated and should be considered preliminary.  
As such, they should not be used to formulate or support regulation, guidance, or any other 
governmental or public decision.  For a daily depiction of the AQI data, please visit 
OurCleanAir.com for the most recent AQI Summary.  



Date:  January 15, 2016 
Subject:  AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 

3. Program Reports  
 

There were no exceedances of any National Ambient Air Quality Standard during the month 
of December.  The active weather pattern during much of December resulted in enough 
mixing to keep the burn code Green for 28 days, Yellow for 2 days, and Red for 1 day.  
 
In February 2015, the AQMD and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) 
collaborated on a pilot project to allow flexibility to the Open Fires regulation (Section 
040.035).  The primary change was to move the start date of the Spring open burn season 
from March 1 to February 14, weather permitting.  Nearly 400 residents completed open burn 
applications for the 15-day pilot project and TMFPD estimates there may have been many 
more burning without submitting an application.  Of the 395 applications received by the 
TMFPD, 0 percent were reviewed, 12.4 percent of the applications were incomplete, and 7.6 
percent were for properties located in prohibited areas.  The pilot project uncovered gaps in 
the process and provided a learning opportunity for future modifications to the open burn 
program.  The most significant gap was lack of a process to review applications to ensure 
basic air quality and fire safety requirements were being met.  In July 2015, the DBOH 
directed AQM staff to work with TMFPD to implement a Spring 2016 project with better 
process results.  AQM staff attempted to work with TMFPD and developed the following 
recommendations to begin discussions to improve the open burn program.  Bracketed 
underlined items are those that differ from the existing regulation and requirements for the 
burn season that opens March 1.  
 

1. The Spring 2016 open burn season will begin no earlier than [February 15]. 
2. Open burning will be allowed [inside and] outside Hydrographic Area 87 
3. TMFPD determines when weather conditions are safe for open burning. 
4. [Open burning shall not occur when the burn code is Yellow or Red.] 
5. Residents shall submit a complete application [at least one day] prior to burning. 

TMFPD shall review applications for basic air quality and fire safety requirements.  If 
the application is complete, TMFPD will approve the application.  

6. A copy of the approved application will be returned to the applicant.  TMFPD will 
compile open burn application data and share with TMFPD fire stations and AQMD. 

7. TMFPD will inspect at least 5 percent of approved applications prior to, or during, 
open burning to ensure basic air quality and fire safety requirements are being met. 

8. [No more than 300 permits shall be issued.] 
9. [Permits shall not be issued for parcels less than 0.75 acres in size.] 
10. Open burns do not include prohibited materials (i.e., garbage, tires, plastic, etc.)  
11. Smoke from the open burns does not create a public nuisance. 

 
TMFPD evaluated the recommendations contained in these 11 conditions and determined that 
they cannot implement a Spring 2016 pilot project.  They specifically cite lack of capacity to 
meet conditions 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9.  TMFPD has been researching on-line application systems 
that could help streamline the review and approval process.   

 
Daniel K. Inouye 
Chief, Monitoring and Planning  



Date:  January 15, 2016 
Subject:  AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 

a. Permitting & Enforcement 
 

Type of Permit 
2015 2014 

December YTD December Annual 
Total 

Renewal of Existing Air 
Permits 

91 1297 94 1328 

New Authorities to Construct 1 99 14 133 

Dust Control Permits 9 
(339 acres) 

151 
(2129 acres) 

14 
(112 acres) 

114 
(1172 acres) 

Wood Stove (WS) Certificates 21 391 25 322 

WS Dealers Affidavit of Sale 36 
(21 replacements) 

135 
(85replacements) 

17 
(13 replacements) 

105 
(80 replacements) 

WS Notice of Exemptions 
641 

(17 stoves 
removed) 

7490 
(50 stoves 
removed) 

809 
(1 stoves 
removed) 

7143  
(63 stoves 
removed) 

Asbestos Assessments 72 1077 75 862 

Asbestos Demo and Removal 
(NESHAP) 

57 150 24 199 

 
Staff reviewed twenty one (21) sets of plans submitted to the Reno, Sparks or Washoe County 
Building Departments to assure the activities complied with Air Quality requirements. 

 
• Suzanne Dugger Air Quality Specialist II has completed the Washoe County 

Excellence in Public Service Certificate program, and will be recognized by the Board 
of County Commissioners at the January 19th Board Meeting.  
 

• After completing an open competitive recruitment process,  Mr. Scott Baldwin was 
selected and accepted the Air Quality Specialist II position in the Enforcement 
Section.  Mr. Baldwin transferred on January 11, 2016 from the Environmental Health 
Services Division. 
 

• Inspection staff continues to monitor the Pyramid and McCarran expansion project 
with no enforcement actions.  To date, eleven (11) of thirty (30) structures have 
completed the required asbestos abatement and are preparing for demolition. 

 
• Permitting and enforcement has completed their first QI project.  The project was an 

update to the gas station permitting and inspection procedures. 
 
 
 



Date:  January 15, 2016 
Subject:  AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 
Staff conducted thirty eight (38) stationary source and fifty four (54) gas station inspections in 
December 2015.  Staff also conducted inspections on asbestos removal and construction/dust 
projects.  
 

COMPLAINTS 
2015 2014 

December  YTD December Annual  
Total 

Asbestos 3 25 5 27 

Burning 0 8 4 9 

Construction Dust 0 32 4 53 

Dust Control Permit 1 6 0 20 

General Dust 2 48 2 52 

Diesel Idling 1 3 0 3 

Odor 2 30 1 16 

Spray Painting 1 8 2 8 

Permit to Operate 1 12 2 31 

Woodstove 0 13 2 12 

TOTAL 11 185 22 231 

NOV’s December YTD December  Annual  
Total 

Warnings 3 24 5 41 
Citations 0 8 0 11 
TOTAL 3 32 5 52 

 
*Discrepancies in totals between monthly reports can occur due to data entry delays. 

 
 
 
 
Mike Wolf 
Chief, Permitting and Enforcement  
 



COMMUNITY AND CLINICAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
CCHS Phone: 775-328-2441   I   Fax: 775-328-3750   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

COMMUNITY & CLINICAL HEALTH SERVICES DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: January 15, 2016 

DATE: January 28, 2016 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Steve Kutz, RN, MPH 
775-328-6159; skutz@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:  Program Report – Divisional Update, Program Reports 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Divisional Update – 2015 in Review

CCHS remained dynamic in 2015, providing 33,710 important and needed clinical service 
encounters both here and in the community. Social media analytics indicate that we had over 
500 posts or tweets, and over 1.5 million impressions/exposures. Additionally, clients 
received health education, staff met grant goals and deliverables, and management continued 
to lead programs and provide staff development opportunities.  

One of CCHS’s largest accomplishments for 2015 was a significant increase in third-party 
reimbursements. Due to changes in our practices, contracting with Immunize Nevada for a 
billing specialist, and increased scrutiny and direction to our contracted biller (Revenue 
Cycle Management [RCM]), we went from hundreds of dollars collected in 2014 to over 
$47,000 for 2015. As a reminder, increased revenue and reimbursement for clinical services 
was a Fundamental Review recommendation.  

Another outcome of the Fundamental Review is the Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities 
89502 project. Our Immunization and Family Planning Programs partnered to provide 
services at 89502 Family Health Festivals.  

We made the decision to terminate all our agreements with Netsmart, our Electronic Health 
Record (EHR) and RCM vendor, due to performance and dissatisfaction with their customer 
service. After a rigorous vetting process, Patagonia Health was selected to be our new EHR, 
and we expect to launch this in the next couple of months, with staff currently in the planning 
and implementation phases with Patagonia.  

DD___________ 
DHO__________ 

SK

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.B.



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: January 15, 2015 
Page 2 of 8 
 

CCHS was again successful with our Public Health Associate Program (PHAP) applications. 
We received two new PHAs for a two year rotation, bringing the total number of PHAs in 
CCHS to six over the past three years.  

 
In our WIC program staff were recertified as Lactation Counselors, and they strengthened 
the connection with Renown Health Lactation Connection for more challenging 
breastfeeding issues. They also collaborated with Catholic Charities of Northern Nevada to 
provide WIC clients with the national program “Cooking Matters”, teaching families how to 
shop, cook on a tight budget, and how to read food labels.  
 
The Maternal Child Adolescent Health (MCAH) program completed its first full calendar 
year of our Fetal Infant Mortality Review (FIMR) program, reviewing 37 cases. The program 
had a FY goal to review 30 cases. 
 
In the Sexual Health program all clinic staff attended extensive Partner Services training last 
February to enhance STD contact tracing, in response to our ongoing increase in STDs. 
There was improved and increased advertising that increased HIV testing. Staff also worked 
to improve reporting from community healthcare providers.  
  
The TB program had a 28% increase (2,046 to 2,615) in the number of clients served for 
2015, and had a 57% increase (7 to 11) active TB cases in 2015.  
 
For 2015 the Immunization program launched its Facebook page, and Lynnie Shore and Sara 
Dinga received the “Innovation in Immunization” Immunize Nevada Silver Syringe award 
for training local firefighters and EMTs to administer vaccinations in the event of a public 
health emergency. The program participated in 145 off-site clinics, serving a total of 2,756 
clients with 5,037 doses of vaccine administered.    
 
The Chronic Disease Prevention program was successful in getting the RenOpen Streets to 
be a smoke free event, reaching over 1,100 people; this was the first outdoor event in our 
area to be smoke free and is leading the way for future smoke-free/vape-free events. Kelli 
Goatley-Seals, Program Coordinator, assumed the chair of the WCSD Student Advisory 
Committee; this group will be taking actions that will impact all 65,000 students in the school 
district. Staff worked with the University of Nevada, Reno (UNR) to become a tobacco free 
campus.  
 
The Family Planning Program had the best Title X audit in the last 20 years, with only three 
findings. Feedback from the review team was extremely positive. The Office of Population 
Affairs (OPA) developed a benchmarking tool for all Title X grantees.  The following are the 
Family Planning Program’s Benchmarking Successes: 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: January 15, 2015 
Page 3 of 8 
 

 
• Only 1% of Title X Grantees have higher rates of chlamydia screening among female 

users less than 25 years than the Family Planning Program. 
• Only 26% of Title X grantees have higher rates of most or moderately effective 

contraceptive use among female users 15-19 years than the Family Planning Program.   
 

a. Data/Metrics –  
 

 
 

 

 
*It takes a full month after the last day of the reporting month for final caseload counts as WIC clinics operate to the end of the month and 
participants have 30 days after that to purchase their WIC foods.  
 
Changes in data can be attributed to a number of factors – fluctuations in community demand, changes in staffing and changes in scope of 
work/grant deliverables, all which may affect the availability of services. 

315 
1081 

232 155 349 
13 

2145 

0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500

IZ IZ
Offsite

TB STD FP MCAH Total

Number of Visits by Program 
December 2014 and December 2015 

 

December 2014 December 2015

416 306 351 1,094 

2,673 

4840 

0
1000
2000
3000
4000
5000
6000

Number of WIC Participants Served  
NOVEMBER 2015* 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: January 15, 2015 
Page 4 of 8 
 

2. Program Reports – Outcomes and Activities 
 
a. Sexual Health – Jennifer Howell, Program Coordinator, will be conducting RESPECT 

training on February 10-11, 2016 for Washoe County Health District and HOPES staff 
members. RESPECT is an individual-level, client-focused, HIV prevention intervention.  
The RESPECT intervention is designed to support risk reduction behaviors by increasing 
the client’s perception of his/her personal risks and by emphasizing incremental risk-
reduction strategies.  
 
Guadalupe Gomez, Public Health Associate, will be participating in the Project Homeless 
Connect on January 26, 2016.  This annual event is coordinated by Catholic Charities of 
Northern Nevada and aims to connect homeless individuals and families with community 
resources. 
 
Staff was invited and participated in a national teleforum, “The Syphilis Epidemic: 
Briefing and Call to Action”, hosted by the National Association of Community Health 
Centers.  The partnership and collaboration between HOPES and WCHD that worked to 
identify and address our local syphilis outbreak was highlighted, along with other 
experiences from primary care and public health providers. Ivy Spadone, Chief Operating 
Officer for HOPES and Jennifer Howell, WCHD Sexual Health Program Coordinator 
offered their perspectives of the partnership and experiences in our community.  Dr. Gail 
Bolan, Director of CDC's Division of Sexually Transmitted Disease Prevention (DSTDP) 
at the National Center for HIV/AIDS, Viral Hepatitis, STD, and TB Prevention also 
participated on the call.  The syphilis packet that was mailed to Washoe County health 
care providers in January 2014 was also provided as an example of engaging the 
healthcare community. Information and a recording of the call are available at: 
http://www.nachc.com/Syphilis.cfm 
   

b. Immunizations – Thirteen School Located Vaccination Clinics (SLVCs) were conducted 
in December, in partnership with Immunize Nevada and the Washoe County School 
District.  A total of 855 doses of flu vaccine were administered to 777 children and 78 
adults.  A total of 221 doses of vaccine were also administered to 148 participants in 
partnership with the Kids to Seniors Korner program.  Additionally, outreach vaccination 
clinics were held at the Reno-Sparks Gospel Mission and Salvation Army Men’s Drop-In 
Center where 182 doses of vaccine were administered to 78 participants.  Staff also 
completed Vaccines for Children (VFC) provider vaccine storage and handling 
compliance and education visits for the Calendar Year 2015 grant.    

 
 
 

http://www.nachc.com/Syphilis.cfm


Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: January 15, 2015 
Page 5 of 8 
 

c. Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program – Washoe County had 11 cases of 
active tuberculosis in 2015, an increase from seven cases in 2014.  Staff is currently 
working on a large contact investigation (27 contacts, spanning four states) where the 
index case died of undiagnosed tuberculosis.    
 
Julie Baskin, Public Health Associate, will also be participating in the Project Homeless 
Connect on January 26, 2016.  She is collaborating with the State TB Controller to 
provide educational materials related to TB prevention for this event. Steve Kutz will be 
attending the National TB Conference on February 24, 2016 in Denver Colorado.   
 

d. Family Planning/Teen Health Mall – The competitive Title X Grant Proposal was 
submitted on December 31, 2015.  The needs assessment demonstrated that additional 
outreach efforts are important to the program.  Additional funding was requested to 
enhance outreach and collaboration through an Intermittent Hourly (IH) Health Educator 
and additional services through an IH APRN.  Plans are also underway to apply for 
additional funding for an Enrollment Assister as the needs assessment indicated that cost 
of services can be a barrier to care.   
 

e. Chronic Disease Prevention Program (CDPP) – Staff have been working with the 
Washoe County School District (WCSD) on a student wellness policy. In December, the 
WCSD Board of Trustees approved Board Policy 5600, supporting student wellness and 
the wellness policy.   
 
Staff provided training to approximately 25 Northern Nevada Head Start employees on 
tobacco cessation services in coordination with efforts to reduce tobacco use and 
exposure within Head Start families. 
 
Staff developed an Epi-News on ICD-10 Codes for Tobacco Dependence and Exposure, 
including information for providers on cessation and electronic nicotine delivery systems 
(attached). 
 

f. Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) – Fetal Infant Mortality Review 
(FIMR) staff has received 30 fetal/infant death cases since October 1, 2015.  In the 
second quarter of FY 2016, staff conducted data abstraction and summarized 17 cases 
and nine cases were presented to the Case Review Team. The FIMR Community Action 
Team (CAT) met on January 11, 2016.   
 

g. Women, Infants and Children (WIC) –In a joint venture with the State of Nevada WIC 
office and the Center for Unique Business Enterprise (CUBE), WIC clients will be 
offered a unique opportunity to attend a Nutrition Class at the CUBE. This class will 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: January 15, 2015 
Page 6 of 8 
 

teach participants to read and understand the primary components of a “Nutrition Facts 
Label” and learn how to make healthy choices when selecting foods. This “pilot” will 
also include a cooking demonstration, recipes that will be budget friendly, and take less 
than 30 minutes to prepare and cook. The anticipated roll out of these classes is in 
February 2016. The CUBE provides the community with High-Quality Education 
Services which includes classes, seminars, and events and is committed to developing 
long-term relationships with government agencies and entrepreneurs. 

 
 
 

 

  



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: January 15, 2015 
Page 7 of 8 
 

 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: January 15, 2015 
Page 8 of 8 
 

 



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
EHS Phone: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DD 
DHO 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  January 28, 2016 

DATE: January 15, 2016 
TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Robert O. Sack, Division Director, Environmental Health Services (EHS) 
775-328-2644; bsack@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: EHS Division Update, Program Updates - Food, Land Development, Vector-Borne 
Disease, Waste Management and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan Review. 

DIVISION UPDATE 

• EHS welcomed two new Environmental Health Specialist Trainees this month. Brianna Johnson
comes from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection where she worked as an Environmental
Scientist III.  Ellen Messinger-Patton comes from a local environmental analytical laboratory where
she worked as a laboratory technician and sales representative.  Both are a valuable addition to our
division.

Nick Florey was promoted to Senior Environmental Health Services effective January 25, 2016, and
will oversee the Special Events and Plan Review programs.

• Second interviews are scheduled for the second recruitment process of Environmental Health
Specialist Trainees.

• Based on the Cost Benefit Analysis developed by AHS and on EHS program needs, the division has
completed a general workload restructure that is being implemented in 2016.

• Staff has developed a comprehensive divisional training manual to prepare the trainees for the new
generalized workload.  The manual consists of performance measure checklists, individual program
field training manuals and evaluation forms, and internal program specific SOPs.  In addition to
providing a structured division-wide training program, this training manual is designed to prepare
incoming trainees for the Registered Environmental Health Specialist credentialing exam.

PROGRAM UPDATES 

Food 

• As a result of the FDA National Retail Food Regulatory Program Standards Strategic Planning
Workshop held in November, staff has developed strategies to re-establish momentum in
achieving conformance with the Program Standards including a plan to prioritize and manage
specific projects that will significantly enhance the effectiveness of the food protection program’s
mission.  In addition to the development of an overall Program Standards strategic plan, staff has
developed the following specific actions plans:

BS
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.C.

mailto:bsack@washoecounty.us


EHS Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  January 28, 2016 
Page 2 of 4 

o Action Plan to build agency-wide support and awareness of the value of the Standards 
Program and how continued implementation will directly contribute to continuous program 
improvement.   
 

o Action Plan to develop and implement a new food establishment inspection form that will 
emphasize a risk based inspection approach by identifying the status of each risk factor and 
intervention.  Implementation of the new form meets the criteria of Standard 3 – 
Inspection Program Based on HACCP Principles. 

 
• The food program was awarded an additional grant from the Association of Food and Drug 

Officials (AFDO) administered Retail Program Standards Grant Program.  This grant will provide 
funds for a public outreach campaign titled “What to Expect When You’re Inspected.” The 
campaign will promote awareness of the new food establishment inspection form and the risk 
based inspection approach.  Implementation of this campaign meets the criteria of Standard 7 
– Industry and Community Relations. 
 

• In an effort to encourage food establishment owner, operators and employees to subscribe to the 
Food Safety listserve on the Washoe County News website, staff sent information emails and 
postcards to food establishment permit holders.  Food protection program staff plans to utilize 
this listserve to notify industry of free food safety workshops and trainings to be held here at the 
Health District.  A survey to gauge interest in workshop topics, dates and times will be sent 
through the listerve in the next few weeks.  Implementation of the listserve and workshops 
meets the criteria of Standard 7 – Industry and Community Relations. 
 

• Staff continues to receive, review and approve Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP) 
plans for food establishments conducting special processes.  Ongoing implementation of 
procedures to verify and validate waiver requests and HACCP plans meet the criteria of 
Standard 3 – Inspection Program Based on HACCP Principles. 
 

• Staff has implemented the existing food protection training program intended to prepare the new 
environmentalist trainees to conduct risk-based assessments at food establishments.  The training 
program consists of a combination of US Food and Drug Administration (FDA) on-line training 
courses, videos, reading material, a structured field training schedule, field training manual and 
internal SOPs.  Implementation of the training program meets the criteria of Standard 2 – 
Trained Regulatory Staff. 
 
 
 

Land Development 
 

• Plans are picking up with the start of the new year.  Currently, plans are on pace to match or 
exceed the same time period last year (2015).  Interviews for the vacant Licensed Engineer 
position will be held this month. 
 

• Well plans have started to come back in after the holiday lull.  They are expected to remain the 
same with drought conditions having affected some of the shallower wells in the region. 
 

• Staff will be attending the 2016 Southwest Onsite Wastewater Conference which will cover the 
use and design of alternative septic systems and education, and advancement for land 
development activities. 



EHS Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  January 28, 2016 
Page 3 of 4 

 Vector-Borne Disease 
 

• Staff recently met with Washoe County Community Services Department (CSD) to discuss the 
removal of sumps in private catch basins provided that a detention basin is constructed for the 
project and using the basin as the sediment collection point.  The City of Reno allows this detail 
method of having private catch basins sump-less when detention basins are required in 
development.  Our Program wants to be able to use the same design criteria for Washoe County 
projects.  By removing the sump which holds water, adult mosquitoes cannot colonize these 
private catch basins.  The design feature eliminates standing water in catch basins which reduces 
calls from neighbor subdivisions of biting adult mosquitoes.  Unfortunately this design is not 
supported in the public infrastructure of which there are approximately 14,000 of these catch 
basins.     
 

• Staff will be submitting to the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection (NDEP) a 
document that details all of the Program’s pesticide treatment activities for the year.  Besides the 
pesticide treatments, this document includes additional information to include the description of 
standing water, temperature, wind speed and the presence of larvae in the water.  This 2-inch 
binder of material submitted to NDEP is collected throughout the year and is due the middle of 
January every year.  
 

• Staff is also renewing the annual permit to the Nevada Division of Wildlife (NDOW).  The 
permit allows our Program to capture and release rodents, determining the number of fleas per 
animal in our surveillance for plague.  The information required by NDOW to renew our permit 
is due the end of January 2016. 
 

• Staff reviewed nine civil plans with the Certificate of Occupancy (C of O) issued in the sign-off 
on four projects.  In addition, staff inspected 15 new housing projects that have the 24-inch 
catchment area for the typical front lot.  The 24-inch buffer is that no turf is planted up to the 
sidewalk and or curb.  The 24-inch catchment area starts from the back face of the sidewalk.  If 
there is no sidewalk, the catchment area starts from the back face of the curb.  The catchment area 
allows water to infiltrate in this 24-inch strip to eliminate over watering of water running off the 
sidewalk and standing in infrastructure.  The landscapers are incorporating this design detail to 
the typical front lots and common areas with turf. 
 

Waste Management 
 
• The WCHD posted public notice of the intent to permit a Tire Management Facility, Rubber 

Enterprises.  The period of public comment is open for 30-days for the public, other government 
agencies and commissioners to voice their opinion for whether the permit should or should not be 
issued.  
 

EHS 2015 Inspections/Permits/Plan Review 
 JAN 

2015 
FEB 
2015 

MAR 
2015 

APR 
2015 

MAY 
2015 

JUN 
2015 

JUL 
2015 

AUG 
2015 

SEP 
2015 

OCT 
2015 

NOV 
2015 

DEC 
2015 

Mo. 
Avg 

Child Care 5 11 5 16 9 9 14 13 22 4 12 8 11 
Complaints 49 53 77 73 72 121 123 132 119 98 65 45 86 
Food 404 543 536 394 412 441 451 337 429 492 328 290 421 
General* 63 103 108 109 315 159 162 376 152 172 89 97 159 
Plan Review (Commercial Food/Pool/Spa) 19 10 13  8  42 19 24 16 8 37 11 11 18 
Plan Review (Residential Septic/Well) 46 57 45 48 46 62 42 44 44 62 53 47 50 
Residential Septic/Well Inspections 33 76 86 85 86 72 94 72 66 93 80 92 78 
Temporary Food/Special Events 26 46 60 72 168 346 221 327 831 186 97 Not avail 221 
Well Permits 8 12 11 13 14 11 9 12 14 15 21 10 13 
Waste Management 8 21 32 16 15 16 8 6 7 17 12 19 15 

  TOTAL 661 932 973 834 1,179 1,256 1,148 1,335 1,692 1,176 768 619 1,071 
* General Inspections Include:  Invasive Body Decorations; Mobile Homes/RVs; Public Accommodations; Pools; Spas; 

RV Dump Stations; and Sewage/Wastewater Pumping. 



EHS Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  January 28, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 

Food Poisoning Bulletin   
Reno Provisions Closing; Made Dessert Linked to Twisted Fork Outbreak      January 4, 2016 by Linda Larsen  

According to a message on its Facebook page, Reno Provisions, the cafe that made a dessert linked to a food poisoning 
outbreak in Nevada in 2015, is closing. An E. coli outbreak at the Twisted Fork restaurant in Reno, Nevada last year sickened 
at least 22 people. 

Investigators at the Washoe County Health District discovered that chocolate mousse 
made by Reno Provisions, a store and cafe, for the restaurant was contaminated with 
the pathogenic bacteria. Apparently a blender used for meat that was not cleaned 
properly before it was used again to make the mousse was the culprit. 

The outbreak took place in October and November, 2015. The Health District ordered 
Reno Provisions to establish a Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP) 
system approach to address the outbreak and learn to control hazards of 
contamination during food production. 

Cross-contamination is one of several ways that food can be contaminated with 
pathogenic bacteria. Foods that can carry E. coli bacteria include raw milk, raw meat, 

raw poultry, and contaminated produce. When these foods are prepared and the surfaces, utensils, and appliances that 
touch them are not properly cleaned, the bacteria can easily transfer to other foods. This is a critical issue when the later 
prepared foods are not cooked to kill bacteria. 

Cuts of beef are usually contaminated with E. coli bacteria on their surfaces, since this bacteria live in the guts of ruminant 
animals. That’s why the USDA and food safety experts tell people to thoroughly cook ground beef and other ground meats to 
165°F before eating to kill this bacteria. 

Reno Provisions temporarily closed after the outbreak for investigators to do their work and for cleaning. The Twisted Fork 
restaurant also voluntarily closed after the outbreak. The Washoe County Health Department did not release any information 
about whether or not any people were hospitalized in this outbreak, or whether any of the patients developed hemolytic 
uremic syndrome, a serious complication of this type of infection. About 15% of children who contract an E. coli infection 
develop HUS. 

The symptoms of an E. coli infection include diarrhea that may be watery and/or bloody, severe abdominal cramps, a mild 
fever, nausea, and vomiting. Symptoms usually appear within three to seven days after exposure to the pathogenic bacteria. 
Some people recover on their own, but others become so ill they need to be hospitalized. 

An E. coli infection can develop into hemolytic uremic syndrome (HUS), in some cases. Risk factors for this complication 
include age and health status. Young children, the elderly, those with compromised immune systems, and people with 
chronic health conditions are more likely to develop HUS. The symptoms of HUS include lethargy, little or no urine output, 
pale skin, easy bruising, a skin rash, and bleeding from the nose or mouth. If these symptoms develop, a patient needs 
immediate medical attention to save their life. 

Meat Blender Contaminated Chocolate Mousse with E. coli 
November 29, 2015 by Carla Gillespie  

When an E. coli outbreak at the Twisted Fork in Reno, Nevada was linked to a dessert item prepared by another company, 
many wondered: what can it be? Something containing fresh berries? Something made from unpasteurized dairy? 

Nope. It turns out that the chocolate mousse made for the restaurant by Reno Provisions that gave 22 people E. coli 
infections was contaminated when a blender used for meat that was not cleaned properly before it was used again to make 
the mousse. Washoe County District Health Officer Kevin Dick said in a statement, “several people who ate at the Twisted 
Fork restaurant had the dessert, as did some other people outside the Reno area who then developed the E. coli infection. 
That commonality led investigators to the dessert supplier, and to tests of food and equipment at Reno Provisions.” 

Washoe County Health District led the investigation into the outbreak which sickened 22 people who ate at the restaurant 
between mid-October and mid-November. The Health District directed Reno Provisions to establish plans through a Hazard 
Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP) system approach, which address the control of hazards including cross 
contamination during the food production processes. 

 “The Health District takes our responsibility to protect the public from communicable diseases very seriously, whether it’s an 
E. coli outbreak from food served in restaurants, or norovirus in schools,” said Dick. “We want the public to know it is our 
highest priority to protect the health of residents and visitors to our area.” 

Symptoms of an E. coli infection include abdominal cramps, diarrhea that can be watery or bloody, fever, nausea, and 
vomiting. Symptoms usually appear in one to three days after exposure and last about a week. Many people sickened by this 
bacteria recover on their own, but others become so ill they must be hospitalized. An E. coli infection can be deadly, 
especially if it develops into hemolytic uremic syndrome (HUS), that can destroy the kidneys. 

https://foodpoisoningbulletin.com/
https://foodpoisoningbulletin.com/author/linda-larsen/
https://www.washoecounty.us/outreach/2015/11/2015-11-24-ecoli-investigation-continues.php
https://foodpoisoningbulletin.com/2015/meat-blender-contaminated-chocolate-mousse-with-e-coli/
http://www.pritzkerlaw.com/ecoli/
http://www.pritzkerlaw.com/hemolytic-uremic-syndrome/
https://foodpoisoningbulletin.com/author/carla-gillespie/
https://www.washoecounty.us/outreach/2015/11/2015-11-24-ecoli-investigation-continues.php
http://www.pritzkerlaw.com/ecoli/


EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
EPHP Office: 775-326-6055   I   Fax: 775-325-8130   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 
DIVISON DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 

BOARD MEETING DATE: January 28, 2016 
DATE: January 18, 2016 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Randall Todd, DrPH, EPHP Director 
775-328-2443, rtodd@washoecounty.us 

Subject: Program Updates for Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, and 
Emergency Medical Services 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
Communicable Disease (CD) – 
Influenza Surveillance – It should be noted that starting in January of each calendar year the CDC re-
starts from 1 the numbering of weeks for disease reporting purposes.  Referring to disease counts by 
CDC Week makes it easier to compare across years and/or across jurisdictions.  It can, however, 
become a bit confusing for influenza surveillance because the flu season each year begins on Week 40 
of one year and continues through Week 20 of the following year.  Also, as a reminder, influenza is a 
reportable disease when it is diagnosed and laboratory confirmed by a healthcare provider.  However, 
most people who become ill with influenza are never diagnosed by a healthcare provider.  Therefore, 
health jurisdictions across the nation select a number of healthcare providers who agree to act as 
“sentinels” and report both the number of patients seen in their practices and the subset of those who 
“appeared” to have an influenza-like-illness or ILI. This percentage of ILI from all sentinel providers 
can then be compared on a weekly basis.  For the week ending January 9, 2016 (CDC Week 1) 12 
participating sentinel providers reported a total of 116 patients with influenza-like-illness (ILI).  The 
percentage of persons seen with ILI by the 12 providers was 1.8% (116/6,360) which is below the 
regional baseline of 2.6%.  During the previous week (CDC Week 52), the percentage of visits to U.S. 
sentinel providers due to ILI was 2.8%.  This percentage is above the national baseline of 2.1%.  On a 
regional level, the percentage of outpatient visits for ILI ranged from 0.8% to 5.3%. 

DD __RT____ 
DHO ______ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.D.

mailto:rtodd@washoecounty.us


Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: January 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 6 
 
Five death certificates were received for week 52 listing pneumonia (P) or influenza (I) as a factor 
contributing to the cause of death.  The total number of deaths submitted for week 52 was 79.  This 
reflects a P&I ratio of 6.3% which is below the epidemic threshold set by CDC for week 52 at 7.0%.  
The national P&I ratio for week 52 was below the epidemic threshold at 5.7%.  The total P&I deaths 
registered to date in Washoe County for the 2015-2016 influenza surveillance season is 74.  This 
reflects an overall P&I ratio of 6.5% (74/1,139). 
 
Public Health Preparedness (PHP) 
General 

- The PHP program has completed the 2nd quarter reports for the CDC base grant, ASPR 
base grant, the 2nd quarter CDC PHEP Ebola grant and the 1st quarter ASPR HPP Ebola 
grant. 

Healthcare Preparedness 
The Inter Hospital Coordinating Council (IHCC) developed and voted on goals for 2016.  
The IHCC also developed, voted on, and approved a one-page Healthcare Requesting 
Form.  This form includes the appropriate information from the Action Request Form 
(ARF) in a simplified format that allows healthcare partners to make requests more 
efficiently.  Examples of a healthcare request would include staff, medical supplies, 
generators, personal protective equipment and water.  A healthcare facility would submit 
the healthcare requesting form to Washoe County Emergency Management (WCEM) and 
notify the Washoe County Health District (WCHD) PHP Program.  The WCEM and 
WCHD would work together to coordinate the resource. 
 

- The Public Health Emergency Response Coordinator (PHERC) for healthcare continues 
to participate in the Medical Surge Working Group.  On December 9, 2015 the State held 
a meeting to discuss the current draft of the Nevada Statewide Medical Surge Plan.  A 
meeting was held on January 8, 2016 to review the first draft of the Region 2 Medical 
Surge Plan.  Washoe County is included within Region 2 along with Carson City, 
Churchill, Douglas, Lyon, Mineral, and Storey Counties.  Final drafts of both the 
statewide and Region 2 plans are expected by February. 
 

- In preparation for Ebola, the CDC categorized healthcare facilities into three tiers: 
Frontline Healthcare Facilities (Washoe County has five), Assessment Hospitals (Washoe 
County has two), and Treatment Centers (there is not a treatment center in Nevada). An 
Assessment Hospital should be able to do the following:  

o Safely receive and isolate a patient with possible Ebola 
o Provide immediate laboratory evaluation and coordinate Ebola testing 
o Care for a patient for up to five days 

An Assessment Hospital should also have enough Ebola personal protective equipment 
(PPPE) for up to 5 days of care. 
 



Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: January 19, 2016 
Page 3 of 6 
 

In light of this, PHP staff held the Concepts and Objectives meeting for a full-scale 
Infectious Disease exercise at one of the two assessment hospitals in Washoe County.  
All Washoe County hospitals will have the ability to participate in the exercise in June. 
 

- The PHERC for healthcare will participate in the Infectious Disease Readiness 
Assessment on January 19 at one of the Assessment Hospitals.  The PHERC is part of the 
statewide team and is responsible for Personal Protective Requirements and EMS 
portions of the assessment.   
 

- The PHERC held the kick-off meeting for the development of the Transportation Annex 
of the Washoe County Medical Examiner’s Office Mass Fatality Management Plan.  The 
anticipated completion date for this annex is May 2016. 

 
Public Preparedness 

- The PHERC for public preparedness worked with the City of Sparks and executed an 
MOU which allows Sparks and the Health District to open a Point of Dispensing site in 
the city during a public health emergency. 
 

- The PHP program held a kick-off meeting for the Pharmaceutical Cache Plan.  This plan 
is expected to become an annex to the Medical Countermeasures Distribution and 
Dispensing Plan.  The intent is to identify local pharmaceutical resources that can be 
marshalled in a public health emergency.  The plan will identify and provide a 
mechanism to access local area pharmaceuticals. 
 

Medical Reserve Corp (MRC) 
- The Washoe County Medical Reserve Corp Unit hosted a Statewide MRC meeting on 

January 15.  Units from Carson City, Southern Nevada and the Nevada Division of Public 
and Behavioral Health attended and discussed each unit’s activities and how they might 
collaborate during emergencies. 

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) – 
The EMS Coordinator continues to participate on the Medical Surge Working Group. The State 
held a meeting to discuss the current draft of the Nevada Statewide Medical Surge Plan on 
December 8, 2015. Additionally, the EMS Coordinator had taken the lead on organizing the plan 
efforts of Region 2 (the seven northwestern counties of Nevada).  A meeting was held on 
January 8, 2016 to review the first draft of the Region 2 Medical Surge Plan. The group has 
scheduled a meeting at the end of February to review the final draft of both the plan and annexes.  
 
EMS staff joined the committee to help Washoe County become a HeartSafe Community.  
Several meetings have been held with involved regional partners.  The designation would be 
given from Nevada Project Heartbeat. The purpose of the HeartSafe designation is to recognize 
collective efforts of agencies and organizations to enhance and improve their pre-hospital system, 



Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: January 19, 2016 
Page 4 of 6 
 
increase awareness of Sudden Cardiac Arrest, increase placement of AEDs, increase availability of 
CPR/AED training, promote heart-healthy behaviors, and make communities a healthier place to live 
and visit.  Chief Mike Brown is a huge proponent of this project as Incline Village/Crystal Bay has 
attained this designation.  The committee has set an internal goal of June 30, 2016 as the target date of 
completion of the requirements to receive the designation. 
 
The regional EMS partners are meeting to discuss the possibility of utilizing Intermediate Life 
Support (ILS) ambulances within the REMSA Franchise service area, as indicted in the Amended and 
Restated Franchise for Ambulance Service. The ILS ambulances would respond to specific priority 3 
Emergency Medical Dispatch (EMD) determinants. The next meeting will discuss the operational 
concerns of implementing the use of ILS ambulances.   
 
EMS staff coordinated and facilitated a meeting with the legal representatives of all EMS agencies on 
December 9, 2015 to discuss Omega calls. The meeting concluded with the legal representatives 
agreeing to develop an agreement/MOU between REMSA and the jurisdictions. EMS staff is 
currently working to schedule an additional meeting with legal and operational personnel to review 
the agreement and address any remaining concerns related to the Omega response process.  

 
The EMS Coordinator held a meeting with Fire, EMS and Law Enforcement to discuss and 
develop a communications plan (ICS 205) for the Multi-Casualty Incident Plan (MCIP) on 
December 10, 2015. The MCIP revisions are slated to be complete by the end of the fiscal year. 
 
The EMS Program Manager was able to present to the two City Councils and the Truckee 
Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) Board of Fire Commissioners.  The City of Reno 
presentation was on December 14, 2015, the City of Sparks presentation was on December 14, 
2015 and the TMFPD Board of Fire Commissioners presentation was on December 15, 2015.  
The final presentation needed to complete is to the District Board of Health. 
 
The EMS Program Manager has begun working with regional representatives from dispatch, fire, 
REMSA, and radio to draft the 5-year strategic plan.  The committee of ten individuals has set a goal 
of bringing preliminary information back to the EMS Advisory Board in July for input, direction and 
possible recommendations.  The committee plans to meet monthly to ensure work on this item 
progresses and last met on December 15, 2015.  
 
EMS and PHP staff conducted an evacuation tabletop at Hearthstone, an assisted living facility, 
on December 18, 2015. Multiple facilities identified the need to exercise their evacuation plans 
as well as the possibility of using the evacuation system in the Mutual Aid Evacuation Annex 
(MAEA). To date, three facilities have conducted tabletops and are considering the feasibility of 
becoming MAEA plan members. 
 
In collaboration with the Nevada Hospital Association (NHA) the WCHD was able to order and 
provide a baseline number of DMS Evac1-2-3 evacuation kits for Washoe County MAEA 
member facilities, REMSA and NLTFPD. EMS staff dispersed the kits to the facilities 
throughout the week of December 21, 2015.  
 



Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: January 19, 2016 
Page 5 of 6 
 
The EMS Coordinator observed an EMS Fire Training on December 30, 2015. This quarterly 
training simulated an altered adult hypothermic patient. EMS Coordinator received positive 
feedback from the crews who completed the simulation and believes it helps build better field 
relationships between responding agencies. 
 
The EMS Advisory Board convened on January 7, 2016. The agenda was comprised of a variety 
of items, including several updates on current EMS topics in the region, the FY15/16 Quarter 1 
report, Fire EMS trainings, Omega calls and mutual aid.  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: January 19, 2016 
Page 6 of 6 
 

 

 



OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
ODHO Phone: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: January 28, 2016 

DATE: January 28, 2016 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer  
(775) 328-2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: District Health Officer Report – Community Health Improvement Plan, Truckee 
Meadows Healthy Communities, Strategic Planning, Quality Improvement, Budget, 
Security, Other Events and Activities and Health District Media Contacts 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) 

The Final draft of the CHIP has been reviewed by the CHIP Steering Committee.  Final edits 
have been made, and the CHIP is therefore ready for Board approval.  Once approved, CHIP 
workgroups will move forward with implementation of the CHIP strategies in order to meet the 
CHIP goals and objectives. 

Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities (TMHC) 

I met with Tony Slonim, CEO of Renown Health to discuss Renown Health’s support and 
participation in TMHC due to Phyllis Freyer’s upcoming retirement from Renown.  Dr. Slonim 
offered to participate on committee in Ms. Freyer’s place and to continue to host the monthly 
meetings.  In addition, Dr. Slonim confirmed Renown Health’s intention to continue to 
collaborate with the Health District to jointly conduct a Community Health Needs Assessment 
during calendar year 2017. 

The Steering Committee met on January 15 and elected Dr. Slonim and I to co-chair the 
committee, Cherie Jamason, Food Bank of Northern Nevada as Secretary and Nancy Hamilton, 
Wells Fargo, and Nancy Brown, Charles Schwab, as the Finance Committee. 

Mew members attending included Alex Woodley, City of Reno, Chuck Duarte, Community 
Health Alliance, and Tracy Turner, Community Foundation.  The Steering Committee also voted 
to add a representative from Northern Nevada Medical Center. 

TMHC received updates on the work being conducted through the Arnold Foundation Feeding 
America grant for long-range planning for the 89502 zip code area, and the PhotoVoice project 
to engage youth in 89502 in a healthy community.  TMHC received approval for a reallocation 
of grant funds received from the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco and discussed 
utilization of those funds.  TMHC has also initiated discussions with Social Entrepreneurs to 
provide support for the TMHC initiatives and will continue those discussions. 

DHO__________ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.E.



Subject: District Health Officer Report 
Date: January 28, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 
 

Strategic Planning 

The Health District Strategic Planning process is moving forward according to schedule.  
OnStrategy will begin one-on-one interviews with the Board of Health members on January 25th, 
and meet with the Health District leadership team on March 2, 2016.  A strategic planning retreat 
will then take place on April 14th-15th.   

QI 
Results were analyzed for the 2015 QI survey, which is a re-assessment of the Health District’s 
progress toward implementing an agency-wide QI program.  The same survey was provided to 
staff in 2013 and 2014.  Survey results continue to show an increase in employees’ 
understanding of QI processes, an increase in excitement about finding new and better ways to 
work and provide services, and an increase in staff participation in QI projects.  There was not a 
single category within the survey responses that showed a downward trend since 2013, when the 
survey was first administered. 

The Q-Team has developed a report-out process for the QI projects implemented by Health 
District staff.  Staff who are working on QI projects will present to the Health District 
Leadership Team every other month when the entire leadership team meets. 

 
Budget 
 
Ms. Heenan and I met with budget representatives from the County Managers office to discuss 
the Health District budget, and whether a standard approach might be established to provide 
general fund transfer support for increases that result from cost of living and benefits increases 
due to the County’s collective bargaining agreements affecting Health District labor costs.  We 
also discussed fee increases adopted in December, some proportional reduction in the County 
subsidy for shared costs, and ending fund balance issues.  We did not reach resolution on these 
topics during the meeting. 
 
Security 
 
On January 12th the Health District was evacuated due to an unattended backpack found in one 
of the restrooms.  The situation was resolved quickly with County staff and Sheriff’s Officers 
responding to provide assistance.  The event also served to identify areas that might be improved 
upon regarding County communications complex-wide, and control of access to the building.   
 
The County continues to work to address security within the 9th Street complex.  The Health 
District will work with them to continue to improve security of the Health District and to address 
issues identified regarding security during DBOH meetings. 

Other Events and Activities  

Attended TMHC Executive Committee meetings on December 18 and January 6. 

Attended a TMHC Steering Committee meeting on January 15. 

Attended a TMHC 89502 subcommittee meeting on January 21. 



Subject: District Health Officer Report 
Date: January 28, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 
 
Met with Tony Slonim, CEO of Renown, to discuss Renown’s continued support of the TMHC 
project on January 6. 

Attended an Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board meeting on January 7. 

Met with Commissioners Jung and Lucey regarding food needs in Washoe County on January 11. 

Attended a Norovirus Outbreak Hotwash meeting with WCSD on January 12.  

Attended Washoe County Department Heads meeting on January 13. 

Met with Councilman Delgado to provide an introduction and orientation to the Health District on 
January 15. 

Attended a briefing on the Accela Regional Project on January 15, and the Accela Regional Project 
Management Oversight Group meeting on January 21. 

Participated in the Board of County Commission Meeting/Strategic Plan Workshop on January 19. 

Attended the REMSA Board meeting January 22. 

Met with Dr. Max Coppes, Senior Vice President of Renown Health, to coordinate on public health 
issues, on January 25.    

Held the second teleconference with the State and Clark County on January 26 regarding establishing 
common goals for the next Legislative session. 

Participated in an Idle Reduction Campaign kickoff meeting January 27. 

Attended Colliers’ annual Area Trends Forecast briefing on January 7.  

Attended The Chamber’s DIRECTIONS 2016 Engines of Change gathering on January 28. 

I met with the Division Directors and Supervisors on January 6 and with the Division Directors on 
January 22.  I meet regularly with the Division Directors and ODHO staff on an individual basis. 

 



Health District Media Contacts: December 9, 2015 - January 19, 2016
DATE MEDIA REPORTER STORY

1/14/2016 KTVN CH2- CBS Reno Megan Green Norovirus - Ulibarri
1/11/2015 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Joe Hart Clean Indoor Air Act - Ulibarri
12/30/2015 KTVN CH2- CBS Reno Shelby Jay Influenza - Ulibarri
12/30/2015 Reno Gazette Journal Anjeanette Damon REMSA management change - Howell
12/22/2015 KRSN FM - ESPN Deportes Laura Calzada Health District Current Issues Update - Ulibarri
12/17/2015 Reno Gazette Journal Mark Robison Health Officer Qualifications - Ulibarri/Dick
12/14/2015 Reno Gazette Journal Mark Robison Health Officer Qualifications - Ulibarri/Dick
12/9/2015 Reno Gazette Journal Mark Robison Health Officer Qualifications - Ulibarri/Dick

Press Releases/Media Advisories/Editorials/Talking Points

12/17/2015 Feature story for NALBOH News Dr. Todd - EPHP Norovirus update in Washoe County
12/17/2016 Press Release PIO Ulibarri Health District receives strategic planning funding

Social Media Postings
Facebook Ulibarri/Schnieder/Barker/ 124 postings on CDC Travel Advisory/Air Quality/

Howell Chronic Disease Prevention/STD/HIV Testing

Twitter Schnieder 120 Tweets Air Quality

Grindr Howell 31 Popups/31 Banner ads



1/20/2016

Legend:

Status Goal
1 Place WIC organizationally where it is most closely aligned with similar functions

a. WIC moved to CCHS effective January 21, 2014
2

a. Completed August 2014
3 Strengthen customer focus, exploring the potential for user groups to share consumer viewpoints

a. Land development user group established, meeting regularly.  Incorporates food and retail assoc. 
4 Critically examine clinic appointment scheduling from a patient access perspective

a. Staffing IZ five days a week, accept IZ walk ins on a limited basis
b. Extended IZ hours established. 
c Vital Statistics staffed five days a week
d Interactive Voice Response software options being explored

5 Update fee schedules and billing processes for all clinical and environmental services
a. Third-party billing service terminated 12/31/15. Immunize Nevada under contract to improve billing.
b. Adopted new fees for services not previously charged for.  Effective 7/1/15. 
c. Fee revisions approved for EHS and AQM December 2015. Effective 7/1/16 (50%) and 7/1/17 (100%)
d. CCHS services reviewed, new fees adopted October 22, 2015

Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

Not Recommended

Complete
Underway

Underway - Regulatory, Budget, Policy Analysis or Issue Resolution Necessary or in Process
Underway but Progress Stalled or Delayed

Not Yet Underway - No Changes Necessary
Parking Lot

January 28, 2016

Develop a DBOH orientation manual and program



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

1/20/2016 2

6 Explore tiered level of services for Environmental Health programs and inspections
a. Consider the desire & support for this type of tiered structure and this item within the larger context

7 Participate in the business process analysis across all building permitting in the county
a. ILA and contract with Accela signed.  16-month implementation proceeding.

8 Develop infrastructure to support the District Health Officer
a. ODHO staffing includes Admin. Secretary, Communications Manager, and Director of Programs and Projects.

9
a. Time coding in EHS and AQM has been underway for over a year and the time accounting data is being evaluated

10
a. Completed and accepted by Board December 2015

11 Perform assessment of needed administrative and fiscal staffing to increase efficiencies
a. Assessing cost analysis results.

12 Demonstrate a concerted effort among all parties to address tensions regarding overhead/direct costs
a. The District is maintaining a positive and productive working relationship with the County Manager & budget ofc

13
a.
b. Assess changes in service levels and program alignment with respect to CHA CHIP, SP or funding

14 Conduct a CHA in concert with current partner organizations
a. Complete.

15 Develop metrics for organizational success and improved community health
a. In FY16, continue to identify metrics that help to manage programs and resources and tell our story

16 Continue current collaborative action plan to resolve REMSA oversight issues
a. Franchise Agreement approved, Regional EMS Oversight Program and Advisory Board established.

17
a.
b.

18
a. Completed 1/16/14.  Repeat in 2018 per approved Significant Board Activities schedule

19 Undertake an organizational strategic plan to set forth key Health District goals and objectives 
a. SP schedule established.  Targeted completion June 2016.

20
a. Use results of program cost analysis, performance metrics and SP to develop & implement performance mgmt. syst

Implement time coding for employees

Perform cost analysis of all programs

Align programs and services with public demand

Maintain current levels of local and state financial support

Shifted home visiting resources to provide additional clinical services on 6/1/14

Past action on this recommendation is captured under Recommendation 12 above
Advocate sustaining or enhancing funding through State agencies

Conduct a governance assessment utilizing NALBOH criteria

Implement a performance management system



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

1/20/2016 3

21
a. This is not a recommendation for staff action

22 Take a greater leadership role to enhance the strong current State/Local collaboration
a. ations
b. Working collaboratively with NDPBH and SNHD regarding 2017 Legislative session priorities

23 Develop an organizational culture to support quality by taking visible leadership steps
a. QTeam established, all-staff training completed 9/15/15, FY 16 QI Plan finalized 

24
a. Seek DBOH direction on this recommendation once the CHA, CHIP and the SP are completed

DBOH - District Board of Health
NALBOH - National Association of Local Boards of Health

Acronyms: IZ - Immunizations

SP - Strategic Plan
QI - Quality Improvement

Seek Public Health Accreditation Board accreditation

District provided testimony on bills during the 2015 legislative session and assisted in changing regu

Consider alternative governance structures

ILA - Interlocal Agreement
CHA - Community Health Assessment
CHIP - Community Health Improvement Plan


	Agenda
	5. Approval of Draft Minutes
	December 17, 2015

	7. Consent Items
	A. Accept Cash Donation
	Staff Report

	B. Appointment to the SWS Board
	Staff Report


	8. Quality Improvement Update Presentation
	Staff Report

	10. REMSA 
	November 2015
	A. Operations Reports
	B. Community Activities

	December 2015
	A. Operations Reports
	B. Community Activities


	11. EMSAB January Meeting Summary
	Staff Report

	12. Draft REMSA Response Zones Map
	Staff Report

	13. Financial Review for December
	Staff Report

	14. CHIP
	Staff Report

	15. Staff Reports and Program Updates
	A. AQM
	Report

	B. CCHS
	Report

	C.  EHS
	Report

	D. EPHP
	Report

	E. ODHO
	Report





